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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Hon. Mark McGowan MLA
Minister for Education and Training; South West

Level 21, Governor Stirling Tower
197 St Georges Terrace
PERTH WA 6000

In accordance with Section 54 of the Vocational Education and Training Act 1996 and section 61 of the
Financial Management Act 2006, I hereby submit for your information and presentation to Parliament the
Annual Report for Central West TAFE for the year ended 31 December 2007.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act
2006.

Malcolm Smith
Chairperson
College Governing Council
10th March 2008

OVERVIEW
Executive Summary
An introduction to Central West TAFE
Central West TAFE is the leading provider of vocational education and training in the Central West region
of Western Australia. The College works with individuals, industry and community stakeholders to
identify, develop and implement a range of high quality training and assessment services that meet the
training and skills requirements of industryand the aspirations of individuals, families and communities.
The Central West region of Western Australia is a large geographical area, covering more than 600,000
square kilometres. While the area is large the population of around 70,000 is sparsely distributed outside
the major centres with many remote communities, including many Indigenous communities, located long
distances from facilities and infrastructure most of us take for granted. The region is characterised by a
vibrant, resource rich environment with an economic base that has traditionally relied upon agriculture,
mining and fishing industries. The Central West region, like much of Western Australia, has experienced
significant growth and development particularly in the mining sector over the past few years. The skills
shortage in the traditional and highly skilled trade’s areas has impacted the region as the workforce has
struggled to supply the necessary skilled labour to meet demand.
Central West TAFE has responded to the challenges of delivering high quality vocational education and
training (VET) programs and services in a dynamic environment. The College services clients from all areas
of the region utilising a range of innovative and flexible delivery methods that have increased and
improved client access to programs both on and off campus. Increasingly training delivery and assessment
is being conducted in flexible ways including in the workplace, through skills recognition, community
based training projects and a range of facilitated online options.
The College reaches clients through a major campus located in Geraldton, the economic and
administrative centre of the region, additional campuses at Carnarvon and Exmouth, a network of
regional locations and partnerships with the Telecentre Network. A range of programs are available at all
Australian Qualifications Framework levels, from entry level training to Advanced Diploma. In addition the
College works with regional secondary schools to provide VET in Schools opportunities and has
contracting and partnership arrangements with major universities to deliver tertiary qualifications. The
College provides a range of lifestyle programs, customised training and consultancy services through its
business development arm, Interactive Training Network.
In 2007 the College strengthened its position to respond to skills shortages through capital and minor
works projects to increase physical delivery capacity in the areas Construction, Engineering, Automotive
and Hospitality. 2007 also saw the first full year of operations at the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute, a
purpose built maritime and aquaculture education, research and training facility located at Separation
Point in Geraldton.
The challenges of operating in a regional area present unique opportunities for developing innovative and
responsive vocational education and training solutions. Regional delivery is characterised by a strong
community consultation process supported by specialist staff and through partnerships with community
based organisations, enterprises and Telecentres. Lecturers develop courses that are suited to client
needs, providing relevant skills that can be applied in the community. Many of the projects undertaken
through training are “live work” projects that also provide lasting benefits to the communities through
the building of new or refurbished facilities.
The College is also focused on developing initiatives that support the empowerment of Indigenous
Australians, provide opportunities for people with disabilities to sample TAFE life and training and
enhance the learning opportunities for people from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds.
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Managing Director’s report
2007 represented a year of many challenges for the staff of Central West TAFE. A booming local economy
with near full employment in major regional centres saw a decline in enrolments in traditional
institutional delivery, a continued increase in apprentice enrolments and an opportunity to recognise the
skills of existing workers. In responding to these challenges staff implemented a range of innovative and
creative strategies which effectively serviced the needs of the Central West region.
Strategies included an increase in delivery in regional locations and to school students, a major capital
works project at the Geraldton campus to increase capacity of trades training, projects to improve
lecturers skills and resources in the area of Recognition of Prior Learning, focus on building relationships
with apprenticeship and traineeship stakeholders within the region, and projects to ensure that all
members of the community have the skills required to capitalise on the opportunities presented by a
booming economy. Details on initiatives such as these are provided throughout this report.
The College expects that changes in the local economy and its effect on the training market will continue
over the short to medium term. 2007 was the first of a two year period during which the College expects
a slight decrease in the number of publicly funded student curriculum hours whilst it undertakes the
research and development into new courses and delivery methodologies required to rebuild its training
profile to match the new employment opportunities emerging in the Central West.
The changing client profile also bought with it some challenges during 2007. With the increase in the
mandated school leaving age to 17 in 2008 the College has been preparing for an influx in young students
who wish to participate in VET either as a standalone option or as a combination of school and TAFE or
TAFE and employment. Preparations have included professional development for staff in meeting the
specific needs of this client group, implementation of the TAFEWA Duty of Care for Minors Policy,
collaboration with local schools to ensure pathways for clients and piloting of programs designed to
engage those within this client group who are at risk of disengaging.
Looking inwards the College recognises the need to continually improve its systems and structure in order
to meet the needs of changing and dynamic external environment. During 2007 the College was
successful in its five yearly registration process with the Training Accreditation Council and through
implementation of the 2007 iteration of the Australian Quality Training Framework is building on a
positive teams based approach to quality and continuous improvement. Additionally, a review of the
College’s decision making structure was conducted with a new governance structure developed focused
on assisting Corporate Executive and College Governing Council to analyse organisational performance,
manage strategic risks and capitalise on strategic opportunities.
On behalf of College Governing Council I would like to congratulate and thank staff for their efforts in
responding to the challenges of 2007 resulting in the many successes achieved throughout the year. I
would also like to acknowledge the contribution of the College Governing Council to the strategic
direction of the College. In particular the contribution of outgoing Governing Council Chair Mr. Barry
Mitchell needs to be acknowledged. In the 13 years he was a member of the Council Mr. Mitchell has
provided a wealth of knowledge, experience and guidance to the College and its senior staff for which our
sincere thanks are extended.
In 2008 I look forward continuing the relationships with stakeholders to ensure the best possible
education and training opportunities for residents and enterprises of the Central West region. With these
relationships in place and continued staff commitment Central West TAFE can expect to respond with a
similar fashion to the challenges that it may face during 2008.
Bert Beevers
Managing Director
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Central West TAFE - 2007 Highlights
Note: A full report of College Performance Indicators and Financial Statements are provided later in this report. The following includes a brief
summary of these.

Training Deli very
Achievement of Training Delivery Profile (publicly funded delivery), counted as Student Curriculum Hours
(SCH)
2007 Pla nned

2007 Actual

% Achieved

848,972

852,574

100.4%

Non-Profile, counted as Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) and expressed as a percentage of total College
delivery
2007 Non-Profile SCH1

% of total College SCH

95,656

10%

1. Non-Profile training activity incorporates Fee for Service and Adult and Community Education courses, Tendered I ndustry Specific
programs, Special Projects (State/ANTA Funded), Other Commonwealth Non -ANTA Activities, VET in Schools Auspicing, Priority Skills
Enhancement programs and other related commercial training delivery activities.

Client Sa tisfa ction
Very positive client satisfaction results were reported for Central West TAFE in the annual WA Student
Satisfaction Survey2 . Results in keyareas included:
Question

CWT Result

WA Average

Overall, how satisfie d were you with this course?

3

91%

87%3

My lecturers had a thorough knowledge of the course content

90%4

87%4

The way I was assessed was a fair tes t of my skills

90%4

85%4

Overall the campus was a pleasant place to learn

86%5

80%5

2. Source: 2007 TAFEWA Student Satisfaction Survey
3. Percentage reported is those students responding either ‘very satisfied’ or ’satisfied’
4. Percentage reported is those students responding ‘most’
5. Percentage reported is those students responding ‘agree’

Similarly positive outcomes for Central West TAFE 2006 graduates were reported in the national Graduate
Outcomes Survey6 . Results in key areas for graduates included:
Question

CWT Result

Nationa l Result

Satisfied with the overall quality of training

91%

89%

Fully or partia lly achieved main reason for completing course

91%

87%

Employed as at 25 May 2007

88%

81%

6. Source: Australian vocational education and training statistics: Student outcomes 2007
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Student Achievements
The success of the College is reflected in the achievement of its students with a number being recognised
during 2007. The following students were presented with Major Awards at the 2007 Graduation Evening
recognising their achievements during 2006:
Zeke Ugle - 2006 Aboriginal Student of the Year, sponsored by the Department of Indigenous
Affairs. Zeke has completed Certificate I in Electro technology (Pre Apprentice Electrical).
Tom Wilson - 2006 Vocational Student of the Year, sponsored by the Mid West Chamber of
Commerce. Tom has completed a Diploma in Information Technology (Multi Media Integration).
Luke Chapman – 2006 Trainee of the Year, sponsored by Market Creations. Luke has completed
Certificate II in Community Recreation and has completed a traineeship at the Midwest Football
Academy.
Robert Dines - 2006 Rotary Apprentice of the Year, sponsored by the Geraldton Rotary Club. Robert
has completed Certificate II in Engineering Production and has completed his apprenticeship with
Dines Electrical & Airconditioning.
Beau Melvin - Best Overall Performance by a Central West TAFE Exmouth Student.
The following students were recognised through awards external to the College:
Megan Labruyere a school based trainee from Geraldton Grammar student was recognised for her
achievements in Certificate II Business Administration at the 2007 WA Training Awards receiving
the VET in Schools Based Trainee of the Year Award.
Tom Wilson was recognised for his achievements in the Diploma in Information Technology (Multi
Media Integration) through becoming a finalist in the Vocational Student of the Year category of
the 2007 WA Training Awards.

Sta ff Achievements
The success of the College is also reflected in the achievement of its staff with a number being recognised
during 2007. The following staff were presented with internal Quality Awards at the 2007 Graduation
Evening recognising their excellence during 2006:
Megan Haeusler – Client Service Award in recognition of outstanding services and professionalism
in dealing with both internal and external clients.
Graeme Walsh – Lecturing Excellence Award for excellence in lecturing and making a strong
contribution across the College.
Kyle Praprotnik - Rising Star Lecturing Award in recognition of striving for lecturing excellence to
enhance understanding of clients and colleagues.
Karen Watts – Leadership Award for providing direction and support, including mentoring, both in
her team and across the College.
Hospitality and Tourism Team - High Performing Team Award for establishing a vision and plan
through best practice industry consultation in the Exmouth and Gascoyne regions to meet industry
training needs.
Additionally, Kyle Paprotnik and Graeme Walsh were round finalists in the 2007 Premier’s Teacher of the
Year Award.
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The commitment show by staff of the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute to providinga professional and
industry oriented training service was recognised when they were highly commended in the Australian
Seafood Industry, Seafood Training Award in September 2007.

Operational Structure
Vision and values
Our vision:
“We will provide lifelong learning opportunities that contribute to the development of individuals,
enterprises and communities of the Central West region.”
Staff are introduced to the values of the College through induction processes with these further
reinforced through the Staff Code of Conduct and reflected in management systems. Our values are:



We continuously strive for improvement
We value the creative intelligence of every person that works for us




We are committed to providing superior customer service
We provide excellence in Vocational Education and Training





We follow a teams based approach
We promote open communication
We accept responsibility for our actions and show respect for others

As reflected in our values the College has a strong client service commitment based on the following
principles:


Prompt Service: we aim to reply to all enquiries in a prompt and timely way, providing the
requested information in the relevant format.



Openness: we will provide all relevant information on our products and services upon request and
in an appropriate format. We will also have information for clients located at each campus.
Communicating effectively: we work to ensure clients can find out what they need to know in a
clear and effective manner. Enquiries can be answered by phone, facsimile, e-mail or in person.
Quality training: we will provide industry relevant training that will allow students to learn the
skills and knowledge required to succeed in their chosen vocation.




Organisational chart
A team based organisational structure and a culture reflective of our values encourages staff to develop
flexible and innovative approaches to meeting client needs. This dynamic structure has provided Central
West TAFE with the ability to continually respond to the changing needs of the region. Through the
provision of high quality training delivery and assessment services attuned to the needs of industry, client
focussed support services and a range of first class facilities and equipment the College assists individuals,
industryand the community to pursue their skills development and lifelong learning goals.
The College is structured around three directorates that provide organisational services and support.
These are:
Academic and Training Services
Responsible for the development and delivery of a range of education, training and assessment programs
that meet the needs of diverse client groups. The area provides educational leadership and a broad range
of academic support services to facilitate participation by clients in relevant, quality vocational education
and training.
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Organisational Effectiveness
Responsible for engaging and supporting clients, providing organisational development through a range of
strategic planning and performance management services and developing the organisation's learning
culture.
Corporate Services
Responsible for developing and implementing systems and processes that support the business and
administrative environment of the College, ensuring the organisation fulfils its statutory requirements and
developing the capability of the College’s workforce.
The following graphic represents the interconnectedness of the College’s organisational structure, with
teams working together to service the needs of clients:
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Strategic directions
In 2006 a review of the College’s strategic plan “Partnerships with the region: building capacity through
education and training 2003 - 2005” was concluded and the renewed document for the 2006 – 2010
period finalised. The following six broad directions and priorities were identified through a process of
consultation and environmental analysis. Details of achievement against these broad directions and
specific priorities in 2007 are included in the Agency Performance - Report on Operations section of this
report.
SD1

Meeting the Skills Development Needs of Industry

The availability of an appropriately skilled workforce to meet the needs of industry and enterprises in the
Central West is critical to the ongoing viability of the region’s economy. The College will work closely with
industry to ensure training is relevant, aligned to regional industry needs and that graduates are viewed
by industry as job ready and able to contribute to productivity from commencement.
SD2
Training and Services that Meet the Needs of the Central West
Central West TAFE actively seeks to identify the training needs of the diverse range of clients throughout
the region and to provide training products and services that meet those needs. Training products are
identified, designed and delivered to enable client access, provide further learning pathways and result in
recognised outcomes for the client.
SD 3

Development of Sustainable Regional Communities

Education and training plays an invaluable role in providing individuals, enterprises and communities with
skills to achieve sustainability. Through strong consultation processes College will identify and implement
training programs that enable individuals to fulfil their VET aspirations and add to the skills base of the
region.
SD 4 Partner with Indigenous People in Education and Training
The College is committed to providing culturally appropriate training to improve the standard of living and
quality of life for Australian Indigenous peoples through empowerment with knowledge and skills to
enable self-determination. The College seeks to be recognised as a best practice provider of Indigenous
training and will work with Australian Indigenous peoples to build a learning environment that achieves
relevant outcomes and provides life long learning opportunities.
SD5
Excellence in Support Services
Excellence in learning and assessment is underpinned by excellence in business practices and client
services. Central West TAFE will optimise the quality and opportunities of its delivery and assessment
services through effective and efficient provision of corporate and client support services.
SD6
Achieving Professionalism in VET
Through a teams based organisational culture the College seeks to further develop its capacity to respond
to the challenges of the changing VET market through the development of a flexible, skilled workforce and
an effective working environment that encourages innovation and excellence. The College will build on its
strengths of organisational culture, commitment and professionalism to continue to be recognised as the
preferred provider of quality vocational education and training in the region.
Further development and refining of the College’s Strategic Directions, Priorities and Focus Areas
occurred in late 2007 with a renewed document and condensed five broad directions to be published in
2008.
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Governing Council
The Governing Council of Central West TAFE comprises a Chairperson, Deputy Chairperson, and members
appointed by the Minister as representatives of local industry, the community, and the Managing Director
of the College.
Governing Council members in 2007 were:
**Mr Barry Mitchell (Chairperson)
Mitchell and Brown Communications
Industry Representative

Mr Darren Lee (Deputy Chairperson)
Market Creations
Industry Representative

Mr Terry Brennan
Geraldton Regional Aboriginal Medical Service
Industry Representative

Mr Malcolm Smith
Consultant
Community Representative

*Dr Nancy Rees
Curtin University of Technology
Community Representative

Debbie O'Toole
Electoral Officer
Community Representative

* Ms Di Morrison
Proprietor Wahroonga Station
Industry Representative (Carnarvon)

** Ms Marita Keenan
Community Representative (Exmouth)

Ms Susan Shaw
Principal Geraldton Grammar School
Community Representative

Mr Ron Ashplant
City of Geraldton-Greenough Councillor
Community Representative

Mr Bob Floky
Central West TAFE
Staff Representative

Mr Bert Beevers
Central West TAFE
Managing Director

* completed term of appointment July 2007
** completed term of appointment Dec 2007

Key legislation
Central West TAFE complies with the following legislation in carrying out its functions and activities:
 Copyright Act 1968
 Equal Opportunity Act 1984
 Education Act 2004
 Electoral Act 1907
 Disability Services Act 1993
 Financial Management Act 2006
 Freedom of Information Act 1992
 Industrial Relations Act 1979
 Industrial Training Act 1975
 Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
 Privacy Act 1988
 Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
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Public Sector Management Act 1994
Public and Bank Holidays Act 1972
Sex Discrimination Act 1984
State Supply Commission Act 1991
State Records Act 2000
Racial Discrimination Act 1975
Vocational Education and Training Act 1996
Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
Workplace Relations Act 1996

Performance Management Framework
Government goals, agency outcomes and services
The Western Australian Government strategic plan “Better Planning: Better Futures” released in
September 2006 outlines common goals for public sector agencies to assist in achieving an overall vision
of providing the best opportunities for current and future generations to live better, longer and healthier
lives.
Central West TAFE is committed to achieving the State Government’s vision through the provision of high
quality vocational education and training services that meet the skills and economic development needs
of individuals, communities and industries in the Central West region. This commitment is translated into
action through alignment of the College’s Strategic Directions to those of the State Government.
Goal One of Better Planning: Better Futures is aimed at enhancing the quality of life and wellbeing of all
people throughout Western Australia. Central West TAFE has a significant role to play in achieving this
outcome through encouraging lifelong learning, contributing to positive outcomes for people with
disabilities, providing training which empowers Indigenous Australians and providing services which
ensure equal access for all sectors of the local community. Central West TAFE Strategic Directions 2 – 4
have a focus on achieving this aim. Actions undertaken in relation to the directions during 2007 are
reported in the Agency Performance section of this report.
Goal Two of Better Planning: Better Futures is to create conditions that foster a strong economy
delivering more jobs, opportunities and greater wealth for all Western Australians. Central West TAFE
responds to this goal through focusing the provision of training on skills shortage areas within our region
to ensure industry has staff with the skills it needs to grow and prosper. Central West TAFE Strategic
Direction 1 Meeting the Skills Development Needs of Industry has a particular focus on achieving this goal.
Actions undertaken during 2007 in relation to the directions are reported in the Agency Performance
section of this report.
Goal Four of Better Planning: Better Futures is to ensure that regional Western Australia is strong and
vibrant. The College’s strategic plan Partnerships with the Region: building capacity through education
and training recognises the vital role the College has to play as a large government agency servicing the
Mid West, Gascoyne and Murchison regions of Western Australia in enhancing the lives of the citizens and
communities of the region. The College makes a significant contribution to the region’s economy as a
large employer and through our role in developing the skills of the workforce. We carry considerable
responsibility for developing the lifelong learning skills that are essential for people to participate
effectively in their communities. In particular Strategic Direction 3 Development of Sustainable Regional
Communities and Strategic Direction Four Partner with Indigenous People in Education and Training has a
focus on achieving this Government goal. Actions undertaken in relation to the directions are reported in
the Agency Performance section of this report.
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Goal Five of Better Planning: Better Futures is to develop and maintain a skilled, diverse and ethical public
sector serving the Government with consideration of the public interest. Central West TAFE is committed
to achieving this goal at the local level through continued development of management systems that
meet the needs of the workforce in responding to client needs. In particular Strategic Directions 5
Excellence in Support Services and 6 Achieving Professionalism in VET are focused on achieving this
Government goal. Actions undertaken in relation to the directions are reported in the Agency
Performance section of this report.
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AGENCY PERFORMANCE – REPORT ON OPERATIONS
Achievements against Strategic Directions
SD1 Meeting the Skills Development Needs of Industry
Central West TAFE recognises the impact an appropriately skilled workforce that meets the needs of
industry and enterprises in the region can have on the economic viability of the Central West. This
strategic direction represents a commitment to work closely with industry to ensure relevant training,
aligned to regional industry needs with graduates viewed as job ready and able to contribute to
productivity from commencement.
College priorities for this direction are to:







Work with industry to service skills shortages.
Collaborate with industry to increase the number of apprenticeships and traineeships in the
Central West
Service the skills needs of the identified priority industries within the region.
Develop new ways of working with industry to service the skills needs of existing workers.
Consult and partner with industry to make training industry relevant.
Establish partnerships with emerging industries to develop relevant VET.

The following provides information regarding the College’s achievements against these priorities during
2007. College achievement against this direction contributes to Goal Two of the State Governments
Better Planning: Better Futures strategic plan.

Skills shorta ges
The College has recognised over a period of time the need to continually upgrade and expand its trades
delivery areas in order to meet both industry skills needs and the needs of students on their pathway to
mainstream VET. With the local economy experiencing significant growth due to mining developments in
the regions this need was further highlighted during 2007.
In response to these demands Central West TAFE applied to the WA Department of Education and
Training for capital works and equipment funding to increase delivery capacity to client groups such as
schools, apprentices and pre apprentices, in key skills shortage areas. This $3.2 million project will see the
expansion of the carpentry, fitting and machining, automotive, undercover area for general trade skills
and a new skills kitchen in the hospitality area. The majority of the work was completed by the end of
2007, in readiness for the 2008 academic year. The remaining area to be completed, the hospitality skills
kitchen commenced construction in late 2007 and is due for completion in the April 2008.
An additional $890,000 was received to purchase additional equipment for delivery in skills shortage
areas including the above plus an upgrade to the workshop at the College’s Carnarvon campus.
These projects are an important step in ensuring the College is well placed to continue to not only deliver
industry standard trades training in skills shortage areas but to also continue to offer a broad range of
options to those students transitioning to VET.
An example of a program developed in response to local skills shortages is a plastering short course
delivered in Geraldton during 2007. This course was developed in response to a request from the local
Apprenticeship and Traineeship Company (ATC) who reported a skills shortage in this area which could be
filled with local unemployed once they had attained a set of specific skills. College staff worked with the
ATC to develop a program which developed skills required by local employers within a short eight week
program. Participants left the program with skill development, increased general employability skills and
15

having achieved competency in a number of units. It is expected an improved program will run in 2008 to
provide skill development in the three wet trades areas of plastering, tiling and bricklaying.

Apprenti ceship and Traineeship delivery
Central West TAFE has experienced a 100% increase in apprentice numbers since 2003. This is reflective
of the growth in the local economy in the mining industry and related trades such as construction.
However it also is reflective of local business satisfaction with the training and assessment services
provided by highly skilled and qualified lecturing staff.
During 2007 the College continued to support student pathways to apprenticeships through provision of
school apprenticeship link programs in construction, metals, automotive, commercial cookery and
personal services.
Pre apprenticeship programs were also delivered in electrical, carpentry and joinery, metal fabrication,
automotive and boatbuilding resulting in 80% of participants entering apprenticeships. The Certificate I in
Engineering (Metal Fabrication) pre-apprenticeship in Carnarvon continued its success in responding to
industry demand with progression to apprenticeships high. A new course delivered in 2007, Certificate II
in Electrotechnology Servicing (Renewable Energy) provided students with an introduction into the
principles behind renewable energy. This course was run in semester two and aimed at students
completing a pre apprenticeship course in Electrotechnology during semester one to provide them with
further skills in this developing industry before entering an apprenticeship.
While apprenticeship numbers have continued to grow the College has experienced a decline in
traineeship delivery. During 2007 staff continued to focus on improving services provided to trainees and
their employers through a Professional Development Support Program (PDSP) undertaken to develop
skills for lecturers supporting trainees.
To ensure coordinated provision of services to employment based training stakeholders the College
continues to participate in regular network meetings with Australian Apprenticeship Centre and ATSN.

Servi cing the skills of existi ng workers
During 2007 and continuing into 2008 the College has a focus on building lecturer skills and organisational
systems to facilitate increased servicing of existing workers through a combination of recognition of prior
learning and flexible skills gap training.
Skills development projects for lecturers in the area of recognition of prior learning (RPL) included WA
Department of Education and Training funded projects which provided:



Introductory RPL professional development to 25 lecturing staff. One staff member also
participated in the TAFEWA Challenger Stage II project on RPL;and
Comprehensive RPL professional development to four lecturers.

Through these projects best practice RPL resources were sourced and developed by different participants
including resources for streamlined, client focussed RPL in Teacher Assistant, Tourism, Plant Operations
and Panel Beating.
Particular success was reported utilising the resources developed for Teacher Assistant and Financial
Services clients to engage a number of existing workers in this field throughout the region to accredit
their skills during term four 2007.
In addition to these RPL projects the College provided Workplace English Language and Literacy (WELL)
programs for local companies Diab Engineering, RCR, Department of Agriculture, and Fisheries
Department.
16

A further example of College programs to engage existing workers is a partnership with Nazareth House
which saw a group of existing workers participating in Certificate III in Aged Care traineeship. This
program involved an upfront skills assessment followed by workshops and workplace assessment. The
two hour workshops were held fortnightly with each workshop run twice to allow as many people to
attend as possible. All the trainees have now completed and a new group of twelve trainees were signed
up at the end of 2007 to complete a similar program in 2008.

Consul ting and pa rtnering wi th indus try
Ongoing consultation and development of partnerships with industry is key in achieving Central West
TAFE’s goal of providing training and assessment services that are reflective of local industry needs.
One method of industry consultation prevalent throughout the College is the formation of Industry
Advisory Committees (IACs) that bring together representatives of a specific industry to provide input
into training delivery planning and methodology, and assessment tools. Central West TAFE staff utilise
the information gained through these committees to continually improve upon existing services and to
develop new programs. A revision of the induction kit provided to IAC members and the standard agenda
were undertaken during 2007 to further enhance the effectiveness of the consultations.
In addition to formalised consultation methods lecturers have over time built informal networks with
their particular industry. These informal networks are used to gather feedback about training and
assessment services which are then used to effect continuous improvement.
Successful consultations and partnerships with industry during 2007 included:


During 2006 the College partnered with the Department of Agriculture and Food WA (DAFWA) to
develop a program to service their employees and contractors engaged in Feral Dogging whereby
a TAFE lecturer developed and provides on the job training and a DAFWA employee provides the
assessment to facilitate skills development and recognition in Certificate II Conservation and Land
Management (Pest Control). This partnership was built upon during 2007 to develop a skills set
for DAFWA employees and contractors to meet regulatory requirements in Fire Arms. Central
West TAFE now provides these services to DAFWA throughout the state and is working with
bodies in other states to roll out a similar model.



An ongoing partnership with Legal Aid Western Australia and Community Legal Centres Western
Australia to provide a customised traineeship to paralegal staff was built upon through the
building an Assessor Network funded by Reframing the Future. A three day workshop was
attended by TAFE representatives, Legal Aid staff, industry and TAFE assessors and solicitors.
During the workshop participants: explored the draft of the new BSB07 Business Services Training
Package; identified new qualification packaging; investigated new methodologies in the field of
recognition of prior learning; and mapped units of competency back to workplace tasks. The
network was extended to many new regional and remote Community Legal Centres through a
presentation at the State Community Legal Centre Conference. This has enabled many previously
isolated Community Legal Centres to investigate opportunities for training which support and
develop staff skills.
Successfully completed a training needs analysis for business with significant focus on small
business that has led to working with industry and state ITAB to contribute to new directions and
courses or more importantly skills sets to meet the needs of the small business stakeholders. In
particular, we have contributed to research and review and are pleased to look at new skills sets
for "Small Business Contracting", "Small Business Financial Management", "Small Business
Operations Preparatory" and “Micro Business Operations” for 2008.
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A strong relationship has been formed with FarmBiz through the Business Development Unit of
the College throughout 2007 to fund the provision of accredited training to build capacity of rural
farms, stations and pastoral ventures.



A new relationship has been built with the Carnarvon Shire with training for Shire staff provided
through Workplace English Language & Literacy (WELL) funding in the areas of first aid, BlueCard,
customer service, cultural awareness, computer skills and management skills. The Shire is keen to
continue this partnership into 2008.
The College continued to run the successful Training Alliance Manager (TAM) program which
enables a College staff member to be placed with an enterprise for approximately one day per
week on a consultancy basis. Their role is to assist the enterprise to identify training needs and
source training programs or products that will address these needs. The TAMs also assist
enterprises to identify alternative funding sources for training. During 2007 Training Alliance
Managers were placed with the Department of Water, Geraldton Resource Centre, City of
Geraldton-Greenough, and Shire of Irwin.



SD2 Training and Services that Meet the Needs of the Central West
Central West TAFE has a strong commitment to identify and meeting the diverse range of training needs
of potential clients throughout the Central West region. Training products are identified, designed and
delivered to enable client access to further learning pathways and result in recognised outcomes for
clients.
College priorities for this direction are to:








Provide opportunities for all sections of the community to participate in VET through the creation
and provision of a broad range of deliveryand assessment options that match client needs.
Provide multiple, flexible pathways for clients that maximise their employment and further study
options.
Work collaboratively with other educational and training sectors to provide client with crosssectoral pathways and ensure the provision of a wide range of learning opportunities within the
Central West region. Lead and drive the development of Education Precincts within the region.
Increase participation rates and improve outcomes for diverse client groups.
Create and maintain a learning environment that encourages participation by all clients and
facilitates positive learning outcomes.
Maintain a culture of continuous improvement to ensure provision of high quality products and
services.

The following provides information regarding the College’s achievements against these priorities during
2007. College achievement against this direction contributes to Goal One of the State Governments
Better Planning: Better Futures strategic plan.

Deli very a nd assessment options that match client needs
During 2007 staff continued to develop creative and innovative programs that meet the needs of both
clients and industry.
Certificate I Industrial Skills
One such program initiated by local mining company Oxiana provided a pathway to ongoing training and
employment for Indigenous youth graduating from the Midwest Football Academy. In conjunction with
Oxiana staff the College developed a ten week course that enabled students to gain the skills required by
Oxiana prospective employees through the completion of practical tasks and achieve a Certificate I in
Industrial Skills. It was essential that the units selected and program developed was delivered in a way
which engaged the client group to enable skills development and achievement of a qualification. The
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course included work placement at Oxiana, Central Earth Moving and City of Geraldton-Greenough and
achievement of First Aid, Forklift and Road Management Certificates. A local Indigenous organisation,
Wila Guthurra, also partnered in the program to coordinate work placements. Variations of this program
were successfully run three times throughout 2007 and will be further built upon in 2008.
Certificate I Industry Pathways (Manufacturing)
A further program focussed on innovative delivery to meet client needs undertaken during 2007 was
participation in a State wide pilot of the Certificate I Industry Pathways (Manufacturing). The target client
group for this course are year 10 and 11 secondary students who have been identified as being at serious
risk of disengaging from education and training, who are not engaging in existing programs, and who
would benefit from personal skills and employability skills development. The pilot was conducted in
partnership with Geraldton Senior College, Geraldton Regional Community Education Centre and Central
West TAFE. Training was delivered on site in the manufacturing workshop of Central West TAFE for the
VET component, at Geraldton Senior College for curriculum subjects and Geraldton Regional Community
Education Centre for some of the workplace and interpersonal skills development sessions. The program,
whilst challenging at some points, was successful with two students transitioning to the Metal Fabrication
pre apprenticeship in 2008. College staff will apply knowledge gained through the pilot to improve the
program for continued delivery in 2008.

Crea ting pa thwa ys for clients
During 2007 the College continued to build upon relationships with other education sectors to ensure
access to educational pathways for clients.
Strong links were maintained with the Geraldton University Centre (GUC) to promote articulation and
pathways and for collaborative approaches to planning for tertiary programs with the Director Academic
Training Services being an active member of the Geraldton University Centre Board. A new memorandum
of understanding was formulated with the GUC for the provision by Central West TAFE of facilities,
equipment and staffing to support the delivery of Bachelor of Science (Nursing) and Bachelor of Arts
(Contemporary Arts) programs.
With changes to the school leaving age the importance of creating pathways for youth from schools to
VET and then onto employment was a focus for the College during 2007. Specific initiatives focussed on
creating pathways for youth included:
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Implementing strategies and actions identified in the 2007 District Education and Training Plan
with a range of programs that had been identified as providing options for young people in the
region at risk of disengaging from education and training. In addition to potential training options
the DETP also outlines support strategies such as mentoring as being crucial to increasing
retention and success for young people. Close communication with the Participation Unit and
involvement on forums such as the Transition Reference Group (the LCP) maintains the College as
a key stakeholder in the development of strategies to address retention of at risk young people.



Ongoing discussions with Geraldton Senior College (GSC) to look at ways to accommodate an
anticipated increase in numbers of Year 11 and Year 12 students seeking TAFE study options in
2008 as a result on the increase in mandatory schooling. GSC estimate there may be up to 130
extra students that they may not be able to accommodate and are therefore looking for
alternative education and training options.



Commencement of “Collaborating for Success” pilot project with WA Department of Education
and Training to investigate a holistic planning and delivery model for 16 – 17 year olds in the
Geraldton area, project to conclude in 2008.



VET for School Students (VETSS) programs further developed in 2007, stronger working
relationships established with schools and the District Office facilitated better planning of VETSS
programs. Demand for VETSS in the region led the College to request a significant increase in
VETSS hours for 2008, which have been approved.

Youth
Supporting young people by increasing opportunities to participate in Vocational Education and Training
is a key priority for Central West TAFE. 2007 was a transition year of the increase in school leaving age,
with young people now needing to stay engaged in school, training or employment until the end of the
year in which they turn 16 years, increasing to 17 in 2008. The increase in school leaving age has meant
greater interaction between the College and schools to identify and implement programs to effectively
engage young people in education and training as seen by the information provided above. This has
proved challenging particularly in regional and remote locations where few options exist for young people
beyond the traditional Year 10.
With the number of students under the age of 18 participating in mainstream VET the need for a sector
level approach to the care of these students was required. Central West TAFE has been an active
participant on the TAFEWA Duty of Care for Minors Working Group established in late 2006 to develop
and implement a Duty of Care for Minors Policy across TAFEWA. At a College level successful
implementation of the Policy during 2007 has been achieved through a review of existing procedures,
cooperative development of processes across a number of sections, audits of actions to ensure
adherence with procedures developed and clear communication through a local working group.
VET in Schools
The College has traditionally provided a number of services to youth through VET in Schools Programs,
which include TAFE-Link programs provided by the College where students complete nationally
recognised units of competence; auspiced programs delivered by the schools and quality assured by the
College; School Based Traineeships; and School Apprentice Link (SAL) programs
VET in Schools delivery is across a range of industry areas including: Information Technology; Automotive;
Engineering; Business; Building and Construction; Beauty Therapy; Maritime; Metals; Hospitality; Cooking
and Retail. The participating schools in 2007 were: Geraldton Senior College; Burringurrah Remote
Community School; Carnamah District High School; Carnarvon Senior High School; Dongara District High
School; Exmouth District High School; Holland Street School; Gascoyne Junction Remote Community
School; Mullewa District High School; Cue Primary School; Meekatharra District High School; and Pia
Wadjarri Remote Community School. Delivery is conducted at a range of locations and in some instances
includes student working on community projects.
School Apprenticeship Link
The College continued to deliver a successful School Apprenticeship Link program during 2007 aimed at
providing students with the opportunity of gaining greater awareness of the industry of their choice
whilst still enrolled at school. Students participate in school, TAFE and work placement with various
employers over the term of the program. A positive outcome is that an employer will commit to taking
the student on as an apprentice at any stage of the program should all parties be satisfied with the
progress of the student.
Two schools participated in the SAL program during 2007, Geraldton Senior College and Nagle Catholic
College across five industry areas: construction, metals, automotive, commercial cookery and personal
services. 44 students participated in the program.
One successful strategy to engage all parties involved in the SAL was through a Parent Information Session
for the group of students that were accepted into the 2007 program. This was a very successful evening
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whereby both parents/guardians and students were given information in relation to the SAL program.
The coordination of this event involved a partnership with the schools, ATSN, Academic Directors,
Lecturing Staff and support staff.
Midwest Football Academy
The College continues to provide vocational education and training options to young Indigenous males
enrolled in Geraldton Senior College and attending the Mid West Football Academy. This program has
been extremely successful and the partnership between the College, Geraldton Senior College and Mid
West Football Academy has ensured that the projects undertaken in a holistic manner at the Academy
have had far reaching positive results for the students participating in the program. During 2007 the
College supported the Academy in the delivery of Certificate of General Education for Adults (CGEA) and
the Certificate I in Sport & Recreation for Year 11 and 12 students. Through the ‘General Curriculum
Option’ unit of CGEA the students were provided the opportunity to attend the TAFE campus and be
provided with training in different industry areas, including information technology, hospitality, seafood
industryand construction.

Promoting a cul ture of continuous improvement
During 2007 the College underwent its five yearly registration audit with the Training Accreditation
Council. In preparation for this event the College contracted an auditor to undertake an internal audit
across the College. Both of these events encouraged staff to review their current practices and identify
areas of good practice to share with others and areas of improvement. In particular the preparation
phase for the external audit was welcomed by staff as an opportunity to conduct self analysis and further
developed the College’s team approach to quality.
The Training Accreditation Council Audit was successful with the College being registered for a further five
year period. A number of areas of good practice were identified through the audit which were shared
with staff via the College intranet and through presentations at Quality Week. Areas for improvement
identified were shared with staff though the issuance of a Quality Improvement Request, these will be
followed up through future internal audit activities.
In addition to these audit activities the College undertook its annual self assessment process and also set
about reviewing processes to ensure alignment with the revised Essential Standards for Registered
Training Organisations of the Australian Quality Training Framework 2007. Through these activities staff
have been encouraged to review practices, systems and processes to ensure they are facilitating the best
possible outcome for our clients, communities and local industry.

SD3 Development of Sustainable Regional Communities
Education and training plays an invaluable role in providing individuals, enterprises and communities with
skills to achieve sustainability. Central West TAFE utilises consultation processes to identify and
implement training programs that enable individuals to fulfil their VET aspirations and add to the skills
base of the region.
College priorities for this direction are to:
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Consult widely and conduct research into industry and community needs to ensure the provision
of training services that build more skilled communities.
Develop long term community training plans that ensure the provision of training and skills
development that enhance the capacity of regional communities to plan and manage their future.
Support the implementation of the State Sustainability Strategy and the provision of integrated
government services to regional communities.





Identify and develop innovative and flexible options for delivery and assessment to meet the
needs of clients in remote and isolated communities.
Identify innovative ways to ensure suitable delivery and assessment facilities are available in
regional and remote areas.
Look for opportunities to incorporate the principles of sustainability into training delivery and
where possible provide opportunities for nationally recognised outcomes for clients in
sustainability principles or practice.

The following provides information regarding the College’s achievements against these priorities during
2007. College achievement against this direction contributes to Goal Four of the State Governments
Better Planning: Better Futures strategic plan.

Consul ta tion and research
In late 2006 the College was successful in attracting funding to develop a strategy that (a) reflects the
training needs of people with disabilities, (b) identifies training pathways for people with disabilities (c)
identifies the number and type of training options available to support the needs of people with
disabilities; (d) determines the professional development requirements of staff working with people with
disabilities and the College training plan to support this requirement; (e) identifies policies, procedures
and processes that adequately reflect the College’s ability to support the needs of people with disabilities
and guide the organisation in the development and delivery of quality training products for this client
group; (f) formalises the roles and responsibilities of partnering organisations and the level of support
being provided by all parties to support identified training programs and (g) College training plans
focusing specifically on options for people with disabilities.
The project titled Building Capability through Inclusivity commenced in March 2007 and through a team
of enthusiastic and dedicated staff proceeded with great success. Through both national (Reframing the
Future) and state (Department of Education and Training) funding the team was able to consult with 24
service provider organisations and 44 people with disability/carers to determine local needs and
alongside conduct an in depth analysis of resources and reports surrounding people with a disability and
their participation in VET. This joint research approach has resulted in a wealth of knowledge and
understanding being gained amongst the project team which will be shared with College staff throughout
2008 and be utilised to develop future programs for this client group.
Direct results from the project include two pilot programs being implemented during 2008, that is,
Developing Ongoing Independence in Education and Training (DOITE) and Certificate I in Work for Life
Skills in partnership with ACTIV Foundation and Holland Street School.

Servi cing regional and remote clients
Providing training and assessment services in the more regional and remote locations of the Central West
can present itself with particular challenges. These include the costs associated with travel, finding
suitable delivery locations, retaining suitable student numbers, and locating suitable staff to provide
services. Central West TAFE continues to provide a high quality services to all within the region through
partnering with other agencies, local businesses, local shires, Indigenous organisations and Telecentres.
Many examples of how these partnerships facilitate service provision are included throughout this report.
One particular strategy developed during 2007 is outlined below.
VET for schools cluster approach
In planning 2007 VET for Schools programs during 2006 it became apparent that there was a group of
students in remote areas who were not being serviced due to a lack of sufficient student numbers at
individual schools. In partnership with the District Education Office the College developed a model
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whereby schools were clustered together to create synergy of numbers and student interest to provide
VET for Schools delivery.
Within the Murchison Cluster students from Cue Primary School and Mt Magnet District High School were
grouped and then broken into two groups one of which undertook units from Certificate I in Transport &
Distribution (Road Transport) and Certificate I in Furnishing at Cue Primary School with the other
undertaking units from Certificate I in Visual Arts & Contemporary Craft and Certificate II in Make-Up
Services at Mt Magnet DHS.
The training was conducted in weeks three and eight of term two (May and June) and term three (August
and September). Students participated in a total of two weeks training in two different VET industry
areas.
College staff travelled and delivered the programs within the various locations and contributed greatly to
the success of the program and the increased profile within the school and the larger community. As a
result a similar program will be delivered during 2008 for Mt Magnet DHS and Cue PS.
As a result of the program there were three students that applied for positions in various full time courses
for 2008. Additionally this program has been identified as a ‘best practice model’ – a presentation was
given by the Manager Participation from the Midwest District Education Office to her colleagues and the
college is negotiating on delivering a presentation at the 2008 Training Forum.
The Remote Cluster involved three schools, being Burringurrah Remote Community School, Gascoyne
Junction Remote Community School and Pia Wadjarri Remote Community School. Training for these
students was provided on campus in Geraldton over a one week block during every term. The students
participated units from either the Certificate I in Transport & Distribution (Road Transport) or Certificate I
in Hospitality (Kitchen Operations).
Throughout the year issues did arise in relation to travel for the Remote Cluster students and also
conflicts with events that occurred in the local communities. A similar program will be delivered to
students from Gascoyne Junction RCS and Burringurrah RCS but due to distances the training and delivery
may now occur at the Carnarvon TAFE campus.
Overall the coordination involved in arranging students to travel from different schools and also arranging
timetables to suit all parties was very challenging, especially with the already tight schedules faced by the
academic areas. The willingness and support given by the Academic Directors and their lecturing staff to
provide training and delivery to this group of students was appreciated by all involved.

Sus tainability and integra ted servi ces
The College has over time developed a number of avenues to support the integration of services
throughout the Central West region. During 2007 these initiatives included:
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Managing Director is a member of Midwest Gascoyne Area Consultative Committee and
Geraldton Economic Alliance.
Director Academic Training Services is a member of the Geraldton University Centre Advisory
Board.
Director Organisational Effectiveness is a member of regional Human Services Managers Group
and the Geraldton Economic Alliance, promoting interagency collaboration in the delivery of
services to regional and remote areas.
Manager Client Services is an active participant on the Youth Coordinators Network.
Ongoing development of Regional Advisory Committees in Carnarvon and Exmouth.
Telecentre partnerships further developed including the College hosting a forum for Telecentre
Coordinators; reviewed and updated Telecentre partnership agreements; provided new signage




and additional promotional materials and stepped up the number and frequency of visits to
Telecentres.
Buringurrah Skills Centre and Telecentre supported through funding agreement with College.
Variety of partnerships with local and State government agencies.

An example of Central West TAFE collaboration with agencies to achieve positive outcomes for students
and communities is provided by the Murchison Roadshow initiative.
Murchison Roadshow
A prime example of how government agencies working together can benefit regional communities is the
Certificate IV in Sport and Recreation Murchison Roadshow undertaken in 2007. Five Certificate IV Sport
and Recreation students were involved in the roadshow, travelling to several communities in the
Murchison district and assisting staff from both the Department of Sport and Recreation and Role Models
Inc WA to conduct clinics at the local community schools.
The Murchison Roadshow aimed to provide and promote physical activity with the assistance of positive
role models to the isolated school communities of the Murchison District. This was a very successful
project for the children of these remote communities, where there are social issues such as health,
substance abuse, violence, unemployment, truancy, and crime. Benefits of the program for local children
included promotion of self esteem/self worth, increased physical fitness, social interaction, greater
awareness of career development, influence of positive sporting role models, reinforcement of positive
attitudes and behaviours, and reduction of truancy and crime within the local communities.
The Roadshow formed part of the Certificate IV in Sport and Recreation student’s assessment for their
Events cluster of units. The students were provided an opportunity to assist and work alongside
Department of Sport and Recreation development officers and role models from Role Models Inc WA. As
all participating students wish to gain employment in this field, it was a great opportunity for them to
witness the professionalism, in both their presentation and manner that is required when working in the
industry. The importance of being well prepared with activities, equipment, timing and space was also
highlighted. The knowledge and experience gained was invaluable.

SD4 Partner with Indigenous People in Education and Training
Central West TAFE is committed to providing culturally appropriate training to improve the standard of
living and quality of life for Indigenous people through empowerment with knowledge and skills to enable
self-determination. The College seeks to be recognised as a best practice provider of Indigenous training
and will work with Indigenous people to build a learning environment that achieves relevant outcomes
and provides life long learning opportunities.
College priorities for this direction are to:
 Consult and partner with Indigenous communities to ensure the provision of culturally
appropriate training services that builds more skilled communities and enhances social and
economic outcomes.
 Participation by Indigenous people and their success in vocational education and training is
maintained and improved through the creation of learning pathways
 Develop and implement strategies to increase participation by Indigenous peoples in the higher
level qualifications of the AQF.
 Increase participation in and successful outcomes in employment based training for Indigenous
people.
The following provides information regarding the College’s achievements against these priorities during
2007. College achievement against this direction contributes to Goal Four of the State Governments
Better Planning: Better Futures strategic plan.
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Consul ta tion & pa rtnerships
A key method of consultation with Indigenous people is via Indigenous Education, Employment and
Training Committee’s (IEETC) operating in Geraldton and Carnarvon campuses. Operation is supported by
the College and IEETC have an integral role in assisting to develop and review Indigenous Training plans.
Further community participation is sought for both IEETC’s, with one meeting (of four) being held in a
remote location in 2007.
Consultation with communities in Midwest, Murchison and Gascoyne undertaken by Indigenous Training
Officers underpins the Indigenous Training Plan, which is discussed and endorsed by IEETC’s.
In addition to these consultations the College is represented in a variety of agency and community
meetings and forums undertaken in the Central West each year. An example occurred in December 2007
where College staff participation in Working in Partnership workshop involving a large number of mining
companies and Indigenous representatives of traditional landowners. Ongoing involvement with steering
group and participation in planned Regional Partnership Agreement continuing in 2008.
During 2007 and continuing into 2008 the College has a particular focus on consultation and forming of
partnerships to improve services to the town of Wiluna. Through combined State and Federal funding
$2.2m has been allocated to build a community skills training centre in Wiluna. A Project Coordinator has
been appointed to consult with community members and groups, including the Shire and local mining
operations, to determine the type of delivery required. The site for the centre has been allocated
adjacent to the new school which was completed in late 2007. Building is due to commence during 2008.
Relationships with another remote community, Burringurrah, were built upon during 2007 through a
number of visits to the centre by the Carnarvon Indigenous Training Officer and the Gascoyne Academic
Director. Through the visits successful training programs such as Certificate IV Governance, Certificate I in
Visual Arts were negotiated. Programs at Burringurrah are delivered in conjunction with the Telecentre
and Community members.

Lea rning pa thwa ys & hi gher AQF levels
Central West TAFE employs a number of strategies to provide learning pathways for Indigenous students
and to encourage them to enter and achieve at higher Australian Qualification Framework levels.
An Aboriginal Scholarship program has been running since 2002 with sixty student awardees over the
period being assisted with the costs associated with undertaking VET. This assistance has made a positive
impact on their lives and provided the financial support required for them to participate in their chosen
field of study. Eleven scholarships were awarded during 2007. Successful outcomes for scholarship
awardees have included gaining employment in their field of study, progression to higher level studies,
securing an apprenticeship, and finalists in the State Training Awards.
To encourage access for Indigenous people to higher level VET courses the College has a program which
allocates places within specific qualifications for suitable applicants. These places are widely advertised
within the community to encourage participation, successes have included Indigenous students
participating in and completing Certificate IV in Health Science Foundation and transitioning to Diploma of
Enrolled Nursing.
To enable all students to select their desired pathway to either further education or employment the
College has identified training pathways (both general and generic) for each qualification that the College
offers. All pathway documents updated annually, this occurred in November 2007 and included adding
three new College training programs.
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The development of a formalised Indigenous student mentoring approach was initiated during 2007
which will further encourage participation and learning pathways. Mentoring manuals have been
developed for use as staff and student resources and will be implemented during 2008.
A focus on creating pathways to further learning is always apparent in the planning processes for
Indigenous specific training programs. The following table provides information of a number of programs
implemented during 2007:
Location

Course

Partners

Geraldton

Cert I in Horticulture

Bundiyarra Aboriginal
Community Corporation

Northampton

Cert I in Indus trial Skills
(Semester One)

Wila Guthurra,
Northampton Shire &
Mooniemia Community
members.

Intro to Construction
(Semester Two)

Yalgoo

Cert II in Visual Art &
Contemporary Craft
(Semester One)

Marddu Aboriginal
Community and Yalgoo
Shire

Cert I in Indus trial Skills
(Semester Two)

Outcomes
Complete d Ce rt I with the view of a
pathway into Ce rt II for 2008 and possible
setting up of a horticultural venture
(nursery).
Proje cts included: construction of a
nursery gree nhouse, re ticulation and a
basic rock wall garden feature at the
Mooniemia site.
Pathway from the first semester(Industrial Skills), projects included:
construction of a toile t block veranda and
basic mainte nance and repa irs at the
Mooniemia site, erecting a shade sail in
town skate pa rk.
On-going Arts program that was a
pathway from 2006 training and engaged
the Marddu ladies g roup who produce d
various art work for display and sale.
As above with focus on Art design and
clothing fabrication.

Training focused on employment outcomes
With a booming local economy, particularly in the resources and construction sectors Central West TAFE
recognises the importance of ensuring all members of the community have the skills required to make the
most of the opportunities present. A number of initiatives were undertaken by the Indigenous Training
Services branch during 2007 in this regard, including:


Facilitation of the Certificate I in Industrial Skills Oxiana program for Indigenous youth as
described in SD2 Training and Services that Meet the Needs of the Central West of this report.



2007 was the third year of art program delivered in collaboration with the Wiluna Shire. Local
artists received more than $100,000 in income in 2007 as a result of sale of art works.
Funding secured through Indigenous Training Support program to employ mentors for Wiluna and
to support Indigenous apprentices and trainees. Wiluna mentoring program will include
transportation and nutrition program for participants.
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Successful approach to Aboriginal School Based Trainee program in Carnarvon increased
participation.



Won two year contract to deliver the Aboriginal Education, Training and Employment Officer
(AETEO) program, from July 2007. AETEO to undertake extensive consultation and provide advice



and guidance to Indigenous communities regarding employment and enterprise opportunities
and make linkages to appropriate training support.
Innovations funded project to investigate skills training requirements for Indigenous people to
work in the resources sector undertaken in 2007, to be completed in 2008. Outcomes will provide
a solid basis for training delivery planning in the resources industry area.

Funding committed by the State Government during 2007 to develop and commission a Mobile
Indigenous Trades Training Unit will provide a further tool in providing training with employment
outcomes in the regions into the future.

Successful outcomes
In order to spread the benefits of training throughout the community in which it takes place Indigenous
Development Officers work with local government, Indigenous organisations, other government agencies
and community members to develop skills in participants through completion of a community project.
Some examples of particularly successful programs during 2007 are provided below.
Industrial Skills/ Rural Skills @ Buttah Windee Aboriginal Community
Buttah Windee Aboriginal Community is located 7 kilometres west of Meekatharra. The aim of the
training program was to construct a nursery on site for the community members to obtain the
appropriate skills to enable them to produce fresh fruit and vegetables. The program included growing
locally sourced native seed for surrounding mining companies. The locally grown seed was also used for
creating an entrance statement and a row of native trees down the main road into the community.
Following success of the initial program a further course was designed as people enrolled were keen to
continue their training. Participants continued to carry out tasks relevant to the community beautification
project for a short period until the course was relocated into town for an introduction to industry skills.
The project based in Meekatharra was in conducted in conjunction with Yulella Aboriginal Corporation
and involved the construction of a training room adjacent to the Yulella Fabrication Workshop.
Introduction to General Education @ Yulella Aboriginal Corporation – Meekatharra
The aim of this program was to improve literacy skills of Indigenous people residing in the Meekatharra
area. This program was run as a pilot program to be developed and implemented in all the communities
that Central West TAFE operates. After consultation with Yulella, Indigenous Training Services staff
conducted literacy assessments for 36 participants in Meekatharra. From the 36 assessments 24
enrolments were gathered and the course was delivered over four hour sessions a week over the
semester to wed the literacy component into the Industrial skills program and CDEP activities.
This program proved to be a huge success in the community with a number of participants stating that
the course has made their lives a lot easier through being able to read and write with greater proficiency.
All involved are keen to continue the literacy program and look forward to the course starting in 2008.
Gaining Access to Training and Employment & Certificate I Industrial Skills – Nyurra Yuldoo Aboriginal
Corporation
In consultation with Nyurra Yuldoo Aboriginal Corporation the College initially planned to run a course to
assist the Shire of Wiluna in constructing a local park. However due to a variety of local factors
participants were not keen in assisting the Shire in their endeavors. In order to find a suitable project
which could facilitate the course participants were asked what they thought required improving within
the community. From there numerous projects were successfully completed to facilitate skills
development. This included:
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Kutkabubba community clean up;
Nursery establishment at the Murrawayurra old CDEP shed; and
Kutkabubba Community Tip Fencing contract – participants were taught the process of what is
involved in applying for a tender including estimating material costs, calculating measurements
and costing out project, and submitting a formatted application for the tender. After being
successful in tender process participants then went about turning the formatted submission into a
live work project that covered the units of competency to cover a planned follow on course in
Certificate I Industrial Skills.

Certificate I Information Technology @ Shire of Wiluna
In consultation with community members a need was identified for local people in using internet banking.
This was expanded to completion of Certificate I in Information Technology where participants attended a
four hour session a week. Internet banking was one of the many skills participants learnt in the course. It
is envisaged that the success of this program will result in similar training being offered not only in Wiluna
but in many remote locations throughout 2008 in partnership with other local Shires and Telecentres.

SD5 Excellence in Support Services
Central West TAFE recognises that excellence in learning and assessment is underpinned by excellence in
business practices and client services. Central West TAFE is focussed on optimising the quality and
opportunities of its delivery and assessment services through effective and efficient provision of
corporate and client support services.
College priorities for this direction are to:
 Foster a service culture at all levels of the organisation ensuring the provision of high quality
support to both internal and external clients.
 Continuously improve and streamline administrative processes that allow staff to focus on
servicing client needs.
 Continue to improve the types of support services provided to students.
 Improve the image of Central West TAFE as a provider of a diverse range of industry relevant
training.
 Develop and maintain sustainable organisational systems and processes that ensure
organisational compliance requirements are met and that staff have the resources they require to
deliver high quality products and services.
The following provides information regarding the College’s achievements against these priorities during
2007. College achievement against this direction contributes to Goal Five of the State Governments
Better Planning: Better Futures strategic plan.

Focus on client servi ce

During 2007 the College reviewed it Code of Practice which outlines the College’s commitment of service
to our clients. The document outlines the services the College provides, describes our service standards
and provides information about how clients can contact the College with feedback.
Through the review the following principles of client service were agreed upon:
 Prompt service: we aim to reply to all enquires in a prompt and timely way, providing the
requested information in the relevant format.
 Openness: we will provide all relevant information on our products and services upon request and
in an appropriate format. We will also have information for clients located at each Campus.
 Communicating effectively: we work to ensure clients can find out what they need to know in a
clear and effective manner.
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Quality training: we will provide industry relevant training that will allow clients to learn the skills
and knowledge required to succeed in their chosen vocation.

These principles apply to clients both internal and external to the College. The Manager Quality and
Planning attended staff meetings throughout the College to discuss the revised Code of Practice and what
it means for staff. These discussions and the review itself were in conjunction with implementation of the
Australian Quality Training Framework (AQTF) 2007.
Changes to the AQTF, the quality framework governing all registered training organisations, were made to
improve the quality of training and assessment in the VET sector. The changes came into effect on 1 July
2007 with the underpinning principles including: reduction of the regulatory burden; improving
stakeholder confidence in qualityskills outcomes; and promoting continuous improvement of training and
assessment. Central West TAFE staff have seen the change as an opportunity to refocus College staff,
policies and processes on achieving the best outcome for the client.
Redeveloping a strong positive quality culture focussed on the client and on continuous improvement will
continue to be a priority for the College during 2008.

Organisational s ystems a nd processes
As an organisation focussed on continuous improvement Central West TAFE regularly implements
improvements to its systems and processes. This can occur in a variety of forms from an individual
improving a regular task to a team undertaking a review of major process or structure within the College.
Some major initiatives undertaken during 2007 are as follows.
Shared Services Reform
Central West TAFE transitioned into the Education and Training Shared Services Centre (ETSSC) 13 th
November 2006.
There has been mixed levels of success across the College with further improvements expected to be put
into place. A new Service Level Agreement is being developed with additional Key Performance
Indicators.
Further to the Service Level Agreement a Customer relationship project has commenced as a means of
monitoring daily issues which are escalated to systemic problems. It is expected that this group will be
able to rectify the problems and ensure ongoing service is provided in a more efficient manner.
Job descriptions forms for Central West TAFE human resources and finance staff have been reviewed and
updated. Although ETSSC continues to demand considerable time of the human resources staff, it is
envisaged that as the implementation progresses more focus can be provided to strategic human
resource issues, especially the workforce management plan, while ETSSC contributes to personnel and
payroll processing.
The Department of Education and Training previously indicated that as a result of the ETSSC transition
funding for two human resources staff would be removed. Based on agreed process maps, it is expected
the residual workload at Central West TAFE is more than originally calculated. It is hoped that
negotiations with DET will lead to a more accurate reflection of the numbers required to perform
functions both at the ETSCC and at Central West TAFE. Similar issues have been reported in the Finance
area of the College.
A Steering Committee and working group for the implementation of People Soft – Human Resource
Management System and Oracle – Finance Management System is being convened. It is expected these
systems will be in place in 2009.
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Quality Document Review Project
As a result of a finding during the Training Accreditation Council audit during April 2007 a project was
convened to review the delivery system of policies and procedures to staff and to bring all College quality
documents up to date. During 2007 the Manager Quality & Planning in conjunction with key positions in
the College responsible for quality policies have achieved the following:
Development of an intranet system which allows staff to search for policies and procedures via a
number of means. This has removed the ‘public view’ to any reference to QETO arrangements
and increased staff access to and use of College quality documents;
 Included a two year review cycle into the policy system to signal and track review requirements;
 42 policies and associated documents underwent review, update and endorsement; and
 18 policies and associated documents were reviewed, considered no longer required and
abolished.
At the conclusion of 2007 a number of documents still required review however staff involved in the
project during 2007 should be congratulated as to the mammoth task that was achieved to date. The
review process will continue into 2008 with a number of teams working together to achieve an up to date
system.


Standing Committee Review
Throughout 2007 a working group representative of College professional teams undertook a project to
review the standing committee structure which has been in place in the College for a number of years.
Key areas of focus in the review included the scope of operations and terms of reference of standing
committees, whether they were meeting their terms of reference through their agendas, meeting
frequency and duration, membership, and whether the structure was meeting College strategic priorities
and effectively managing strategic risks.
The review found whilst the standing committee structure had been effective in meeting the needs of
staff and the College over a long period that it was no longer what was required to ensure development
of the College’s strategic priorities into the future. When initially developed the standing committee
structure was designed to gain staff input into College decision making, however over time this role has
been diminished with committees not always being representative of teams and staff having input
through different channels.
In analysing all information collected the standing committee review group agreed that there was a need
for change to a governance structure that is more focussed on strategic directions, strategic risks, key
performance indicators and which ensure engagement of staff with the appropriate skills. There was also
an opportunity to establish an effective meeting culture through training for committee members, a set of
common meeting protocols and improved executive support.
Taking these factors and the knowledge gained through the review into consideration a revised
governance structure has been approved and will be implemented from the beginning of 2008. The
structure retains the current base governance structure of College Council as the accountable authority
and Corporate Executive as assuming overall responsibility who will gain and share key strategic
information and advice with seven committees. Each committee is focussed on achieving the strategic
priorities of the College, managing strategic risks, and monitoring key performance indicators. The overall
structure is underpinned by sustainability principles, research and continuous improvement. The seven
committees include:
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Quality
VET Issues & Developments
Training Delivery, Planning & Review
Industry & Community Engagement





Asset & Infrastructure Management
Workforce & Organisational Development
Occupational Safety & Health

A number of strategic priorities are shared between the committees which results in a potential for
overlap in business or repetition of information. To overcome this issue an additional Chair / Executive
Officer Group will be formed to ensure effectiveness and reduce duplication. Key roles of this group will
include communication of major decisions, development of Terms of Reference, ensuring adherence to an
agreed set of meeting protocols, allocation of work amongst the committees, up skilling of chairs and
executive officers, and monitoring and reporting on the effectiveness of the new Governance structure.
Working groups attached to a Governance Committee will be formed as major strategic or operational
issues arise within a committee that requires development and discussion with a broader audience.
These working groups will be comprised of staff relevant to the task at hand, be of a short term nature,
chaired by a committee member, will report regularly to the committee and have a clear and specific
purpose.
The College is confident that this Governance Structure will enable the College to become more effective
in its overall operations and in meeting its strategic priorities. An initial review of the success of the
implementation of the structure will occur during October 2008.

Ma rketing and promotion
All Central West TAFE staff have a duty to promote the College and VET through the conduct of College
business throughout the Central West region. Senior staff actively participate in numerous TAFEWA, VET
and Midwest / Gascoyne sector forums to promote the College, provide opportunity for strategic input to
VET development, and feed information back into the College.
In addition to these strategies the College employs a Marketing Coordinator who develops an annual
marketing and promotion plan for the College. During 2007 advertising campaigns through local print
mediums included semester one and two enrolments and top up enrolments. Examples of some major
promotional events are provided below.
Awards Night
Each year Central West TAFE hosts award nights in Geraldton, Carnarvon and Exmouth to present the
previous year graduating students with their academic awards, present staff with quality awards and to
raise the community profile of Central West TAFE.
Students and their families are invited to the event via mailed invitation. Local businesses are personally
contacted to provide sponsorship for major student awards and individual industry area awards for
excellence in their field. The events are published in local print media. The 2007 events were successful
with approximately 240 graduating students and 560 guests attending across the three events.
Blessing of the Fleet
Central West TAFE was an active participant in the 2007 Blessing of the Fleet celebration in Geraldton.
Participation in this event was selected to raise the profile of Central West TAFE amongst the general
Geraldton community and in particular to promote the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute to both the
corporate sector and the general public. Activities undertaken throughout the day included the
MasterClass vessel moored at the main wharf, a seafood feast cook up by the Hospitality department, a
Sea Art Fashion Parade coordinated by Art students and a general Central West TAFE display booth.
Excellent exposure was received through the Geraldton Guardian including photos of the Sea Art Fashion
Show.
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Geraldton Campus Open Day
Central West TAFE’s Geraldton campus held an open day on 18 th October 2007. The purpose of the event
was to raise the profile of Central West TAFE in both the corporate and general public markets in the Mid
West and to generate leads for 2008 enrolments.
Activities included tour of facilities, displays in the canteen, and face to face discussions with lecturers.
The event was promoted by radio advertising, press advertising and flyers distributed to the schools and
employment agencies. Banners were erected at the parks and internal promotion via email took place
along with an email out to the MWCCI members.
Approximately 100 attended the event over the four hour period with 65 enquiry forms being completed.

SD6 Achieving Professionalism in VET
Maintaining a team based culture the College seeks to further develop its capacity to respond to the
challenges of the changing VET market through the development of a flexible, skilled workforce and an
effective working environment that encourages innovation and excellence. Central West TAFE is
committed to building on its strengths of organisational culture, commitment and professionalism to
continue to be recognised as the preferred provider of quality vocational education and training in the
region.
College priorities for this direction are to:
 Recruit and retain quality staff through employing practices which characterise the College as an
employer of choice across the region and within the VET sector.
 Develop a workforce that has the diverse range of transferable skills and knowledge required to
meet existing and future client needs and the requirements of the changing VET sector.
 Create an environment of high performance that empowers staff to be innovative and responsive
to client needs and expectations.
 Research, design, implement and continuously improve work practices and structures to make
more effective use of staff resources in meeting organisational objectives.
 Build the diversity of the workforce to ensure the needs of clients from diverse backgrounds are
met.
The following provides information regarding the College’s achievements against these priorities during
2007. College achievement against this direction contributes to Goal Five of the State Governments
Better Planning: Better Futures strategic plan.

Recrui tmentand retention
In August 2007 the Human Resources branch in conjunction with the Office of Public Sector Standards
Commissioner conducted a workshop for senior staff focussing on recruitment and retention. The intent
of the workshop was twofold. Firstly the presentation by the OPSSC disbanded myths commonly
surrounding the Recruitment and Selection Standard and provided an overview of the flexibilities
available to agencies in recruitment practices. The second part of the workshop provided staff the
opportunity to brainstorm how our recruitment practices could change and what strategies could be
employed to attract and retain staff within the organisation. A wealth of ideas were generated through
the session have been collated by Human Resources staff who are using the information to progress
improvement in processes and development of a workforce wellbeing program.
Improvement in recruitment practices have already been seen in positions advertised since the workshop
with simplified job description forms, improved advertising and refined recruitment and selection
processes.
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This project will continue into 2008 with a review of the ‘Jobs@TAFE’ component of the College website,
selection process training for staff, and implementation of the workforce wellbeing program.

Professional Development
Central West TAFE is committed to developing a workforce with the skills required to respond effectively
to the changing nature of the VET environment. A significant budget is allocated to staff professional
development and managed by the Professional and Career Development Committee. The Committee
develops an annual training plan, coordinates a monthly training calendar, oversees Quality Week
professional development days and reviews individual staff applications for training. Through these
initiatives opportunities are provided for non teaching staff and lecturers to address priority skills
development needs, in line with College and TAFEWA priorities.
Major professional development initiatives during 2007 included:
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Three days of coordinated professional development during Quality Week. Forty four different
sessions were available to staff presented by a range of internal and external presenters. Topics
addressed key academic issues such as engaging the disengaged learner and increasing training
and assessment in the workplace, support staff issues such as time management and what it
means to be a public sector employee, to lifestyle offering such as superannuation and
volunteering. College staff from all campuses attended the three day event including a number of
casual staff.
Lunch time professional development Hot Topics were conducted throughout 2007 utilising internal
and external presenters showcasing best practice strategies, ideas and products. These Hot Topics
included Duty of Care for Minors, WebCT, and Ergonomics.
Extended workshops were held for specific groups of staff on topical issues such as Responding
Effectively to Difficult Behaviour, Contact Officer and Grievance Training, and Risk Management.
Staff from Carnarvon and Exmouth campuses cane together at Coral Bay for a two day team building
and planning workshop to build on a new team motto that ‘none of us is as good as all of us!” The
workshop proved successful with an increased team spirit amongst colleagues from the two campuses
and improved results for the College during 2008.
Learnscope and Reframing the Future funded projects included: developing blended and flexible
materials for workers in the mining sector; supporting training for people with a disability;
assessor network for Legal Aid.
Professional Development Support Program professional development projects included: lecturer
skills in RPL; developing innovative delivery methodologies to engage youth though the General
Construction Training Package; developing a broad range of evidence collection techniques for
business trainees; modernising the traineeship induction package; and workplace learning and
assessment in the aged care industry.
A review of College induction process and manual for staff was conducted and implemented for
2008 staff commencements.
Promotion of opportunities such as study leave, accrued leave opportunities for attendance in
own time, and skills recognition continued to occur.

Training and Assessment Qualifications
Central West TAFE has explored a range of delivery methodologies in our approach to the delivery of
the TAA40104 Certificate IV in Training and Assessment qualification for staff. In line with the TAFE
Lecturers Qualification Framework concept, Central West has adopted a number of initiatives to ensure a
smooth transition into the TAFE environment for new Lecturing staff such as:





Embedding specific aspects of units into induction programs so that staff are prepared for tasks
and duties that they are faced with as they arise and first up;
Adapting, reviewing and continuous review and improvement of assessment strategy to cater to
the current needs of staff in a contemporary learning environment;
Using a complete range of learning resources and methodologies to deliver and support the
qualification for new lecturing staff; and
Ensured that an intensive and supportive Mentoring program complements the qualification and
the participants as required.

Thirty new and existing staff have successfully completed Certificate IV Training and Assessment over the
2006 – 2007 period.
2007 Central West TAFE initiated an agreement with a local private Registered Training Organisation to
offer the Diploma of Training and Assessment for lecturing staff, to enable opportunities for career
pathways advancement and access to higher level salary progression. Staff are encouraged to participate
through subsidised fees, hours contributing to professional development leave and opportunities for
advancement. Approximately 25 staff are participating in the program thus far.
Building diversity
Positive results have been achieved against targets outlined in the Central West TAFE Equity and Diversity
Plan in the areas of Indigenous Australians, People from Culturally Diverse Backgrounds and Women in
Management. Areas for continued improvement include Youth and People with Disabilities with
strategies such as offering traineeships, collaborating with local agencies supporting People with
Disabilities and simplified recruitment processes in place.
Staff training to improve knowledge of diversity included cross cultural training provided by the
Indigenous Training Services team during Quality Week and a number of disability awareness sessions
provided incorporating specific skills development.
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SIGNIFICANT ISSUES AND TRENDS
Current and Emerging Issues and Trends
Central West TAFE has identified a range of issues and trends impacting on the development of VET
delivery in the Central West region. A number of these issues arise from the rapid economic
development, particularly in the mining sector, being experienced in the region and the consequent
demands for a skilled and flexible workforce to meet burgeoning industry requirements. Significantly also
the College is experiencing a period of rapid change in the VET environment itself as we try to respond to
the requirements of industry; provide opportunities for young people to achieve an education that
prepares them for work; and as we try to address the needs of those client groups marginalised from
training and employment opportunities including Indigenous people, remote clients and people with
disabilities.
Most significant among these issues and trends are provided below.

Trades Delivery Capacity
Ongoing pressure on training delivery in areas of industry skills shortages, especially apprenticeship
delivery in traditional and emerging trades areas including metals, automotive, building and construction
and electrical trades. Increased apprentice numbers in these areas, plus demand from industry for local
delivery in new apprenticeship areas not currently serviced by the College (eg, glazing, plumbing, gas
fitting, refrigeration and airconditioning) are stretching the College’s capacity to deliver. Workshop
facilities and equipment in many areas are at full delivery capacity and the College has experienced
serious problems in recruiting appropriately skilled and experienced lecturers in some areas. To date this
has not resulted in cancellations or disruptions to planned delivery however it has placed pressure on
existing experienced staff in these areas in terms of their delivery load and to support new staff.
It’s expected the impact will also be felt as the College tries to accommodate increasing requests from
schools for access to training delivery facilities to provide VET for Schools programs in those areas of high
demand.

College response
The College has received $3.2m from the WA Department of Education and Training to extend delivery
facilities in the Metals; Building and Construction; and Commercial Cooking areas. Capital works
commenced in 2007 with completion of all areas expected in early 2008. In addition the College has
received $890,000 to purchase additional equipment for delivery in skills shortage areas including the
above plus an upgrade to the workshop at the College’s Carnarvon campus.
The College will continue to seek additional funding to increase delivery facilities in 2008 particularly in
the Metals and Building and Construction areas, which are again expected to be at capacity immediately
upon completion. The College is also seeking a stronger understanding about schools’ potential
requirements for VET delivery and to establish protocols for access to College workshops and delivery
facilities.

Raising the School Leaving Age Legislation
In response to the Raising the School Leaving Age legislation and in recognition of the value of seeing
young people engaged in education, training and/or employment for a longer period the College has
experienced a significant growth in the number of young people (16 – 17 year olds) enrolling in programs.
Increasing engagement of young people in the adult learning environment presents challenges which the
College must work with schools, the District Education Office and within the VET sector to address. These
include:
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Providing an appropriate and supportive learning environment for young students, particularly
those with learning difficulties or behavioural issues.
The availability of suitable programs for delivery in the TAFE environment that continue
fundamental skills development and include work force preparation.
Providing professional development for lecturers and non teaching staff in how to work
effectively with the younger client group.
Addressing specific issues relating to Duty of Care for Minors; attendance issues; interaction with
the Participation Unit; and behavioural issues.

College response
The College is funding a position (to be appointed in 2008) to provide support and assistance directly to
young clients to enhance their participation. This position will also provide advice and support to staff in
working with the client group. The College also provides mentoring and in-class support for students with
specific learning difficulties.
The College has strong working relationships with the Participation Unit; District Office and local and
regional schools that have led to an increase on VET for Schools programs and better communication
process to identify and support those students at risk of disengagement.
A range of professional development is provided on an ongoing basis for staff enabling skills
development. Support staff from the Client Services area also assist and provide advice to lecturers and
other non teaching staff.
The Duty of Care for Minors Attending TAFEWA policy was implemented in 2007 and the ongoing
implementation will be closely monitored in 2008. Associated with this policy, processes for recording and
reporting absences; gaining parental consent and collection of health care information have been
developed and are in place.

Demand for workplace delivery
Increasing demand from industry for more responsive, workplace orientated training delivery will present
challenges as lecturers and other staff are required to move out of the traditional classroom based
delivery modes and into more flexible workplace delivery and assessment methodologies. On-site delivery
that is workplace specific, timely and delivered in ways that suit industry require lecturers to learn new
delivery and assessment skills and to work in different ways. Demand for Recognition of Prior Learning;
changes to the apprenticeship training system that enable Fast Track apprenticeships; online learning
options; and demand for industry “skills set” rather than full qualifications are examples of the changing
delivery methodologies the College must move towards. Challenges presented by this include:




Skills and professional development for staff to move to new delivery methodologies.
Flexibility in funding and industrial relations arrangements to allow for a variety of approaches to
deliveryand assessment.
Availability of the appropriate “tools” for contemporary lecturers, eg information technology
resources and infrastructure to enable on-site and remote delivery and assessment.

College response
The College has recognised the need for professional development and has utilised TLASG and Reframing
the Future funding to involve lecturers in action learning projects aimed at increasing the necessary skills
to use new approaches to deliveryand assessment.
Through consultation with industry more delivery and assessment is occurring in the workplace. In 2007
the College recorded a significant increase in the amount of recognition of prior learning provided to
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clients, providing people already in the workforce with formal recognition of their competencies. This will
continue as a priority for 2008.
The College has participated in pilots and projects relating to the use of new technologies to support onsite and remote delivery and assessment.

Batavia Coast Maritime Institute
The Batavia Coast Maritime Institute (BCMI) has been operating for approximately 18 months. During that
time, there have been some challenges in ensuring that its operating environment matches the demands
of both VET delivery and industry requirements.
Fluctuations in the demand for graduates from Aquaculture and Marine training programs combined with
a reticence of the existing marine industry to release participants for further training at a time when there
is increasing work and a demand for highly skilled and experienced participants, will require the BCMI to
develop other revenue and activity production streams such as encouraging study tours and forming
partnerships and shared projects with national and international organisations.
Progress at the BCMI has been somewhat impeded by mechanical problems with equipment at the new
centre and these problems have not allowed the BCMI and the College to fully develop its’ potential for
research and commercial opportunities. Resolution of these problems is ongoing and hopefully, in
conjunction with the Department of Education and Training, will be overcome during 2008.

College response
2008 promises an increase in the amount of activity in partnership with schools as students see the
marine and aquaculture activities as interesting and providing an attractive variation to the traditional
school subjects
Short and midterm objectives include a closer partnership with industries and community sectors,
encouraging diversification, research and the development of practical projects. Projects under current
discussion include further exploration of the mollusc industry, climate change, agricultural diversification,
marine tourism and allied activities.

Central West TAFE Workforce
Like many VET providers and government agencies, particularly in regional areas, the College has
experienced a number of workforce issues. Principally these relate to difficulties in attracting and
retaining suitably qualified and experienced lecturers and VET managers in the skills shortage areas but
also include the provision of professional development that enables practitioners to respond to the rapid
developments in the regional economyand meet industry training needs.

College response
The College has developed a comprehensive Workforce Management Plan to be implemented in 2008.
The Plan includes strategies for recruitment and retention; a staff well being strategy that looks at ways of
improving and enriching the working environment of the College’s staff; strategies for setting and
meeting workforce diversity targets and a more integrated approach to professional development. The
staff wellness plan will be the first part of the Workforce Management Plan to be introduced in 2008 with
the remaining components of the Plan introduced throughout the year.
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Looking Ahead – Major Initiatives in 2008
Major College initiatives planned for 2008 as highlighted throughout this report include:


Research and development of new qualifications and modes of delivery to reshape the College’s
training profile.



Increased collaborative, jointly funded, flexible and innovative training programs with industry
and community.
Improved lecturer skills and increased delivery in Recognition of Prior Learning and provision of
gap training for existing workers.
Development of the Wiluna Skills Training Centre.
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Development and commissioning of a Mobile Indigenous Trades Training Unit that will meet the
needs of communities.



Implementation of the revised College Governance Structure including developing processes for
monitoring of organisation performance.

DISCLOSURES AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE
Government Disclosures
The following members of the College Governing Council have major interests in companies that supply
goods and services to the College:
Mr Barry Mitchell (Chair) - Mitchell and Brown Communications
Mr Darren Lee (Deputy Chair) – Market Creations
Significant contracts (over $10,000) issued to these companies during the year ended 31 December 2007
included:
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Company

Details

Expenditure

Mitchell & Brown Communications

97 x Standard Base Desktop PC as per CUA
16503a with upgrade to: Small form factor
case; 3 year onsite wa rranty; regional zone 3
Vista ready.

$132,308.00

Mitchell & Brown Communications

18 x Standard Base Desktop PC as per CUA
16503a with upgrade to: 3 GHz dual core CPU;
2GB RAM; 160GB HDD; 19” LCD Monitor;
Firewire; 128MB DX9 video card with dual head
adaptor; Vista ready; Small form factor case; 3
year onsite warranty.

$33,026.40

Mitchell & Brown Communications

9 x HP Notebook Computer as per CUA 16503b
with upgrade to: Port replicator / docking
station; Additiona l power supply; 3 year
country warranty

$17,711.10

Other Legal Requirements
Electoral Act 1907
Western Aus tralian Electoral Act 1907
(Section 175ZE)- Disclosure of Gifts and Other Expenditure

Class Of Expenditure
Agency Name
Market Creations
Sun City Print
Wicked Prints
Total

Advertising Agencies
Expenditure in 2007
$30,085.06
$272.73
$3,740.00
$34,097.79

Total

Market Research Organisations
Expenditure in 2007
Nil
$0.00

Total

Polling Organisa tions
Expenditure in 2007
Nil
$0.00

Total

Direct Mail Organisations
Expenditure in 2007
Nil
$0.00

Class Of Expenditure
Agency Name
Nil

Class Of Expenditure
Agency Name
Nil

Class Of Expenditure
Agency Name
Nil

Class Of Expenditure
Agency Name
Albany Advertiser
Cape Connection
Chapman Valley Comm unity Newspape r
Dos Acqua
Geraldton Newspapers
Guardian Print
Kent Adverts ing
Marsh Advertising
Media Decisions
Midwest Times
Mingenew Lions
Mingenew Telecente r Community News
Morowa Comm unity News
Mullewa Telecente r Community News
Northern Gua rdian
Northhampton Community News
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Media Advertis ing Organisations
Expenditure in 2007
$311.25
$56.00
$30.00
$454.54
$30,074.47
$3,336.36
$297.50
$450.00
$1,857.95
$10,864.37
$745.45
$47.73
$254.54
$25.45
$5,061.88
$60.00

Redwave
Rural Press
Shire of Meekatharra
Shire Of Shark Bay
Snag Island News
The West Australian
Yamiji News
Total

$12,740.49
$514.67
42.27
184.37
$100.00
$490.73
$818.18
$68,818.20

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes
People with a disability in the Central West region have limited opportunities to access training and
employment, evidenced by their participation rates in both vocational education and training and the
workforce. There is a significant community need for people with a disability to be gainfully engaged in
useful and rewarding activities. Governments, the community and, increasingly, industry themselves are
recognising the value in utilising the talents and abilities of all members of the community. The diverse
contributions that can be made by all individuals, including individuals with a disability, benefit industry
and enterprises and contribute to stronger communities.
Whilst all staff are responsible for providing a learning program and environment that facilitates
participation for all students Central West TAFE also employs a Disability Liaison Officer who provides a
point of contact for students and staff and advises staff on appropriate support strategies to assist
students with disabilities.
During 2007 Central West TAFE finalised its 2007 to 2008 Disability Access and Inclusion Plan. In
developing the College’s plan a planned approach to consultation occurred with 24 service provider
organisations and 44 people with disabilities/carers and parents. These consultations occurred as part of
a broader Building Capability through Inclusivity program jointly funded by the Department of Education
and Training and Reframing the Future. Ongoing feedback on the College’s plan is being sourced through
publication of the document on the College website with a link provided for comments.
College actions against the six outcomes of the Disability Access & Inclusion Plan are provided below.
Outcome 1: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of,
and any events organised, by Central West TAFE.





Liaised with local service providers to improve processes for open days and enrolments.
Raised awareness through team meetings prior to events. Liaised with organisers of events and
lecturing staff involved. One outcome saw the improvement of the enrolments process.
Conducted surveys with clients and family members through local disability service providers and
gathered feedbackabout TAFE services
Through liaison with local service providers continually raising profile of courses and emphasising
the College’s ability to make modifications and be flexible.

Outcome 2: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the buildings
and other facilities of Central West TAFE.
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Key staff maintain an awareness of Australian standard AS1428 (Part 1 - 4) Design for access and
mobility and the Building Code of Australia (BCA) both of these standards have regular email
updates and amendments.
Key staff liaise with contractors to ensure that all works comply with current Australian standards
for Disability Access.



Surveys conducted with clients and family members and local disability service providers to
gathered feedbackabout accessing TAFE facilities.

Outcome 3: People with disabilities receive information from Central West TAFE in a format that will
enable them to access the information as readily as other people.




Marketing Coordinator advised of alternative format requirements to ensure that all publications
carry a notation regarding availability in alternative formats and to improve current publications
before reprinting, and to ensure that future publications comply.
Consulted with eBusiness Coordinator to make Accessible Information guidelines available on the
Intranet for staff information.

Outcome 4: People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff Central
West TAFE as other people.




Surveys were conducted with lecturers to ascertain what training they require to improve their
skills in delivering to students with a disability.
Surveys undertaken with clients and family members through local disability service providers to
gather feedback about Central West TAFE service standards.
Regular training provided to staff through Quality week, "Hot Topic" Sessions and new staff
inductions.

Outcome 5: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints to
Central West TAFE.





Identified and reviewed current grievance mechanisms for accessibility.
Assessed staff knowledge of complaint handling process through survey group process.
Promoted accessible complaint mechanisms to clients.
Consulted with eBusiness Coordinator to make Accessible Information guidelines available on the
Intranet for staff.

Outcome 6: People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any
public consultation by Central West TAFE.




Have included Disability Service providers in consultation processes.
Ongoing promotion of awareness through publications such as "All about TAFE"
Surveys undertaken with people with disabilities, their families, carers and support networks.
Questions included issues of access and perceived barriers to attending TAFE.

Equal Employment Opportunity Outcomes
The application of the principles of Equal Employment Opportunity is seen as an important part of College
processes. This is reflected through the attitudes of the employees at Central West TAFE and a workplace
that is free from harassment or discrimination.
The College ensures all staff are aware of and are provided with comprehensive information relating to
Equal Employment Opportunity through formal induction sessions for new staff and awareness raising
sessions on staff development days.
In the 2006-2009 Equity and Diversity Management plan, Indigenous Australians were selected as a
priority area. Although the College consistently reports staffing levels higher than the Public Sector
average, the proportion of Indigenous Australians in the Central West region is markedly higher than the
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state average. This is seen as an opportunity for a workforce that reflects the community representation
and also its client profile. Achievements against the plan during 2007 include:















Reviewed Equity and Diversity Policy Statement;
Reviewed, developed and issued new Equal Employment Opportunity Policy;
Reviewed, developed issued and new Grievance Resolution Policyand Procedure;
Consulted widely including with Equal Opportunity Commission on above policies and procedures;
Conducted formal training for contact and grievance officers;
Established contact/grievance officer network within the College;
Conducted information sessions for teams on equal employment opportunity, unwelcome
behaviours and grievance procedures;
Ensured College Code of Conduct consistent with equal employment opportunity principles;
Reviewed recruitment procedures and ensured consistency with equal employment opportunity
principles;
Improved recruitment position statement encouraging young people, people with disabilities,
indigenous persons and women to apply for positions within our agency;
Included equal employment opportunity and equity and diversity information in induction
sessions;
Included equity and diversity in job description forms as they were reviewed’
Reported "How do We Compare" achievement of EEO statistics to Corporate Executive;and
Included equity and diversity accountabilities in performance management system.

Central West TAFE is required to identify objective levels for 2007 and 2009, in terms of percentage
representation of the equity groups in the College employee population. Public Sector agencies are
encouraged to continuously improve the levels of representation, set realistic objectives and identify
strategies to improve these levels. 2007 results indicate the College is coming close to achieving its goals.
Any improvements in the representation of these equity groups must be highly regarded, given the
current employment climate and the difficulty being experienced by all employers in the attraction and
retention of staff.
Staff Equity and Diversity Statistics as at 30 th June 2007 are represented in the following table:
% Representation
Equity Index for W omen
% Women Tie rs 2 & 3
% Indigenous Aus tralians
% People with Disabilities
% People from Culturally Diverse Backgrounds
%Youth (< 25 years)

2006
78.1
53.8%
4.9%
1.9%
4.4%
4.9%

2007
72.9
47.4%
4.9%
0.8%
4.4%
3.8%

2007 Objective
78
50%
5%
2%
4%
6%

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes
The Public Sector Standards in Human Resource Management, The Public Sector Standards, Code of Ethics
and the Central West TAFE Staff Code of Conduct form an integral part of College operations. Central
West TAFE is committed to ensuring compliance and best practice in all aspects of these standards and
ethical codes. The College ensures staff awareness of these codes through the induction of new staff and
encouraging discussion and communication between current and new staff at team meetings and open
forums. Specific initiatives undertaken during 2007 included:
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Undertook a review of the Colleges Code of Conduct to align with the State Code of Ethics;
Staff participation in satellite link information sessions presented by OPSSC;
Selection procedures session undertaken for targeted managers;





The OPSSC presented information on both the Public Sector Standards and Public Interest
Disclosure to senior staff through a one day workshop;
Manager Human Resource and Director Corporate Services attended Regional Attraction &
Retention Seminar hosted by Department of Premier and Cabinet and Curtin Business School;
Conducted attraction and retention workshops incorporating standards compliance;




Provided a Corruption and Crime Commission session for staff on conflict of interest;
Promoted Code of Conduct, Code of Ethics, Public Interest Disclosure and conduct to staff and
improved accessibility to information on College intranet; and



Appointed a second Public Interest Disclosure Officer.

The current policies and procedures relating to the Public Sector Standards in Human Resource
Management can be easily accessed by all staff through the internal Intranet or via communication with
their supervisor or Human Resources Section.
During the reporting period, Central West TAFE received one request for review against the Recruitment
Standard which was dismissed.

Recordkeeping Plan
Central West TAFE currently utilises TRIM Captura as its software management program for
recordkeeping. The College is in the planning stages of moving to TRIM Context in 2008 in alignment
with other State Government agencies. This records software management program enables
compliance with sections 12 and 61 of the State Records Act 2000 in which the State Records
Commission requires each government agency to have an approved recordkeeping plan.
The Colleges plan was approved in 2005 and sets out compliance issues regarding proper and adequate
records, policies and procedures, language control, preservation, retention and disposal, compliance and
outsourced functions.
The following provides key activities and outcomes achieved at Central West TAFE against the four key
areas.
Area one: The efficiency and effectiveness of the agency’s recordkeeping systems is evaluated not less
than once every five years.
The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping system at Central West TAFE is reviewed and
evaluated annually during development of the records section operational plan.
During 2007 an external audit was carried out by Stanton International. Their objectives were as follows:
 Compliance with applicable policies, procedures and legislation;
 Efficiencyand effectiveness of current processes; and
 Accuracy and reliability of information.
Audit findings reported the quality of Management Control as Very Good, with overall exposure risk as
minimum. Auditors reported that the records management area is being managed in an efficient and
effective manner and information is accurate and reliable.
In addition to the external audit during 2007 minor reviews were conducted on a monthly basis by the
Senior Records Officer and records staff to ensure the ongoing effectiveness and improvement of the
system during 2007.
Area Two: The agency conducts a recordkeeping training program
An intensive training program was carried out during 2007 which included records awareness sessions
and induction training being held on a regular basis. During 2007 more than 100 staff members attended
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either the induction or records awareness training. Feedback from these sessions was utilised to evaluate
the effectiveness of the training and to identify opportunities for improvement.
Training was presented by the Senior Records Officer and included:
 Records management
 File management
 Mail management
 Archive Management
Participants received a copy of information delivered at the training session and were able to access this
information via the records page on the College intranet. Training was delivered to all levels of staff
including the Senior Managers, Lecturers and Non Academic staff. Training was delivered at Geraldton,
Carnarvon and Exmouth campuses which resulted in an overall improvement in the uptake and correct
usage of the records system.
Area Three: The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping training program is reviewed from time
to time
A review of the training program is conducted on a six monthly basis taking into account written and
verbal feedback from staff. It is also reviewed to ensure information remains up to date and relevant.
Area Four: The agency’s induction program addresses employees’ roles and responsibilities in regard to
their compliance with the agency’s recordkeeping plan
Central West TAFE has a formalised induction program for new staff which includes a records
management induction. This session not only addressed employee’s roles and responsibilities with
regards to compliance, it also addressed other issues such as correct mail management, file management,
archival management and overall records management.

Government Policy Requirements
Corruption prevention
The Central West TAFE Staff Code of Conduct outlines the expectation of staff regarding issues such as
Honesty, Integrity, Use of Government Resources, Offer and Acceptance of Gifts, Conflicts of Interest and
Ethical Principals and Issues. Staff are provided with this information at the commencement of their
employment with the College with the emphasis placed on the need for them to be mindful of their
obligations as a government employee in relation to these matters.
During 2007 a session was available for all staff during the College annual Quality week on behaviours
expected by government employees, this included information on corruption prevention. Additionally
senior staff attended a professional development session delivered by the Office of Public Sector
Standards which included information on Public Interest Disclosure.

Sustainability
As a training provider in a large regional area Central West TAFE has a strong history of providing training
and support services that enhance the capacity of regional and remote communities. Central West TAFE
sees the State’s commitment to sustainability and the triple bottom line approach as an opportunity to
build its management and planning structures around these principles with a view to continuing the
provision of high quality services to the Central West community.
As part of its commitment to sustainability the College formed an Environmental Management
Committee in 2006 to oversee implementation of the State Sustainability Strategy and related
environmental management improvements. The committee met on several occasions in 2007 discussing
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a variety of topics including energy, water and waste audit outcomes and recommendations. Energy and
water saving initiatives implemented by the Committee in 2007 in a bid to make reductions included:
 power monitoring through electronic smart meters
 installation of daylight power switches
 continue with the triphosphorous fluorescent tube (low wattage) replacement program
 installation of additional time clocks
 utilisation of bore water for all water features
 installation of a new reticulation system includinga weather station to reduce water usage during
times of wet weather
In 2008 the Environmental Management Committee role will be incorporated into a new College
governance committee, the Asset and Infrastructure Management Committee (AIM). One of the key
aspects of this committee will be to incorporate sustainability principles into College resource
management. The new committee will also have a key role in reviewing and monitoring all environmental
issues at the College.

Energy Sma rt Government Policy
The College was not able to meet its 12% energy reduction target for 2006/2007. This was due to the
Sustainability Development Office not allowing a variation in the energy targets, although the College has
undertaken significant building and facility upgrades over the past two years. The Batavia Coast Maritime
Institute is now operating at near full capacity and with current upgrades to Construction, Metals and
Hospitality future targets will be difficult to reach.
Energy Smart Government
program

Baseline

2006/2007

Data

Variation

Actual

%

Energy Consumption (GJ)

6632

6602

0.4%

Energy Cost ($)

227,191

234,180

na

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (tonnes
of CO 2 )

1598

1680

na

365
2,998

323
3,088

Performance indicators
 MJ/sqm
 MJ/FTE

na

A number of changes in Energy Smart Reporting proposed for the 2008/2009 financial year and future
years will remove the distorting effect that changes in operations (such as College growth) can have when
variation in actual energy use is measured. It is proposed that targets will be established that shift away
from an absolute energy basis to a performance basis. (i.e. energy use relative to a measure of output,
such as MJ/FTE/annum).
It is envisaged that this will allow the College to better meet energy targets set by the Sustainable Energy
Development Office as the College grows and develops to meet the community and industry training
needs of the Central West region.
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Other Financial Disclosures
Capital works
In 2007 the College has undertaken significant capital works ($3.2 million) in facilitating the Educational
Precinct project in partnership with the Department of Education and Training. This project will see the
expansion of the carpentry, fitting and machining, automotive, undercover area for general trade skills
and a new skills kitchen in the hospitality area.
The majority of the work was completed by the end of 2007, in readiness for the 2008 academic year. The
remaining area to be completed, the hospitality skills kitchen commenced construction in late 2007 and is
due for completion in the April 2008.
The WA Department of Education and Training are managing the Educational Precinct project including all
financial aspects. When the works have been completed, the Department will formally hand the buildings
over to the College, for inclusion on our financial statements.
Additionally in 2007, the College received a $790,000 equipment grant from the WA Department of
Education in Training to adequately resource areas where skills shortages exist. The funding was received
in 2007 and is currently in various stages of procurement - scoping, quoting, tendering and
commissioning. A summary of the status as at 31 December 2007 is as follows:
Academic Area

Budget

Metals and Enginee ring
Construction

$175,000
$144,000

Expenditure to
31/12/2007
$53,769
$103,332

Remaining Funds to be
expended in 2008
$121,231
$40,668

Gascoyne
Hospitality

$171,000
$300,000

$11,222
$39,332

$159,778
$260,668

TOTALS

$790,000

$207,655

$582,345

Employment and Industrial Relations
Central West TAFE employs staff in lecturing and non lecturing roles, including administration and
support, plus diverse roles such as canteen and childcare. The College is one of the largest employers in
the region with an average of 179.69 full time equivalent staff employed during 2007.
The average number of full time equivalents (excluding casuals) employed at each Campus over the
period was as follows:
Campus

2006

2007

Geraldton
Carnarvon

170.57
8.01

169.25
8.94

Exmouth
TOTAL

1.76
180.34

1.5
179.69

Central West TAFE is committed to developing a workforce with the skills required to respond effectively
to the changing nature of the VET environment. A significant budget is allocated to staff professional
development and managed by the Professional and Career Development Committee. The Committee
developes an annual training plan, coordinates a monthly training calendar, coordinates Quality Week
professional development days and reviews individual staff applications for training. Further information
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on the Colleges commitment to staff development is provided in the Report on Operations section of this
report under SD 6 – Achieving Professionalism in VET.
One workers compensation claim of a minor nature was recorded during the period with nil lost days.
No major industrial relations issues are reportable for the period.
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Auditor General
INDEPENDENT AUDIT OPINION
To the Parliament of Western Australia
CENTRAL WEST TAFE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
I have audited the accounts, financial statements, controls and key performance indicators
of Central West TAFE.
The financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2007, and the
Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory Notes.
The key performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency.
Governing Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements and Key
Performance Indicators
The Governing Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Treasurer’s
Instructions, and the key performance indicators. This responsibility includes establishing
and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements and key performance indicators that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and
complying with the Financial Management Act 2006 and other relevant written law.
Summary of my Role
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on
the financial statements, controls and key performance indicators based on my audit. This
was done by testing selected samples of the audit evidence. I believe that the audit evidence
I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. Further
information on my audit approach is provided in my audit practice statement. Refer
"http://www.audit.wa.gov.au/pubs/Audit-Practice-Statement.pdf".
An audit does not guarantee that every amount and disclosure in the financial statements
and key performance indicators is error free. The term “reasonable assurance” recognises
that an audit does not examine all evidence and every transaction. However, my audit
procedures should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adversely affect the
decisions of users of the financial statements and key performance indicators.
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Central West TAFE
Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators for the year ended 31 December 2007

Audit Opinion
In my opinion,
(i) the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly the
financial position of Central West TAFE at 31 December 2007 and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended on that date. They are in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian
Accounting Interpretations) and the Treasurer’s Instructions;
(ii) the controls exercised by the College provide reasonable assurance that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with legislative
provisions; and
(iii) the key performance indicators of the College are relevant and appropriate to help
users assess the College’s performance and fairly represent the indicated
performance for the year ended 31 December 2007.

GLEN CLARKE
ACTING AUDITOR GENERAL
14 March 2008
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Key Performance Indicators
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators 2007

We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and
appropriate for assisting users to assess the Central West TAFE’s performance, and fairly represent the
performance of the Central West TAFE for the financial year ended 31 December 2007.
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_____________________________
Malcolm Smith
Chairperson, College Governing Council
Central West TAFE

22nd February 2008

_____________________________
Bert Beevers
Managing Director
Member, College Governing Council
Central West TAFE

22nd February 2008

Desired Outcome
“The provision of vocational education and training services that meet the community and industry
training needs of the Central West region.”
Central West TAFE has developed key performance indicators to report performance relating to the
effectiveness and efficiency with which the above outcome has been achieved by the College. The College
uses the indicators in reviewing its performance and in its ongoing commitment to improve its programs
and services.

Effectiveness Indicators
1.1 Student Satisfa ction
This indicator measures the extent to which clients are satisfied with the training received from Central
West TAFE and relates to the College’s objective of providing vocational education and training services
which meet the needs of clients.
Figures for the indicator are derived from a state wide Student Satisfaction Survey commissioned annually
by the Western Australian Department of Education and Training through an independent provider. In
2007 this provider was Colmar Brunton. The survey seeks students’ views on the quality of vocational
education and training services being delivered. Students were asked about their level of satisfaction
with their course, the quality of teaching, the delivery support and the advisory services. The
measurement of student satisfaction is the percentage of enrolled students who overall were either
satisfied or very satisfied with their course.
Table One: Overall Student Satisfaction 2
Central Wes t TAFE

WA Average

2004

2005

2006

2007

2004

2005

2006

2007

83%

83%

89%

91%

1

84%

85%

86%

87%

Note 1: Confidence interval 3.5% at confidence level 95%.
Note 2: Figures are rounded to the nearest percent.

The percentage of Central West TAFE students who indicated they were “Very satisfied” or “Satisfied”
with their course in 2007 was 91%. This result is an improvement on previous year figures for the College
and is slightly higher than that recorded for the State in 2007 (87%). Both the College and State Student
Satisfaction outcomes have improved overtime which is reflective of improvements being made within
the sector to focus on tailoring services to meet client needs through implementation and refinement of
the Australian Quality Training Framework.
The survey employed multiple data collection techniques, namely mail, online and Computer Assisted
Telephone Interviews (CATI). In 2007 the usable population for Central West TAFE was 1,773 students, of
which 1,034 individuals were contacted with 263 usable returns, this being a response rate of 25.4% with
a standard error rate of 1.8% at 95% confidence level.
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1.2 Gra dua te Sa tisfa ction wi th Achievement of Main Reason for Doing Course
Central West TAFE aims to provide training that meets the needs of our clients. The extent to which
graduates of Central West TAFE had fully or partially achieved their main reason for undertaking the
course provides a measure of how well the College is meeting client needs with quality training.
The indicator is based on a national student outcomes survey commissioned by the National Centre for
Vocational Education Research (NCVER) that targets students who successfully completed a vocational
qualification with a VET provider in the previous year and had an Australian address as their usual
residence.
The graduate satisfaction measure shows the percentage of graduates who indicated they had fully
achieved (Yes) or partly achieved their main reason for doing the training. The question had four
response options ‘Yes’, ‘No’, ‘Partly’ or ‘Don’t know yet’ with some students electing not to provide a
response to the question.
Table Two: Graduate Satisfaction with Achievement of Main Reason for Doing the Course 4
2004 3

2005

2006 3

2007

Central West TAFE

NA

84%

NA

91%

Western Australia
Australia

NA
NA

84%
85%

NA
NA

88%

Graduate Satisfaction (Yes and partly)

5

87%

Note 3:

2004 and 2006 data is unavailable due to a change in survey methodology by NCVER to a small sample size resulting in data not
considered reliable for reporting purposes. T he College was unable to provide an up date to this Key Perfor mance Indicator in
2004 and 2006 as statistically valid College data is not available.

Note 4:

Figures are rounded to the nearest percent.

Note 5:

Confiden ce interval 5.4% at confidence level of 95%.

In 2007 a total of 91% of Central West TAFE graduates indicated that they had achieved or partly achieved
their main reason for doing the course. This represents an increase for the College over the 2005 result,
and compares favorably with the Western Australian average of 88% and Australian average of 87%, both
of which have also experienced an increase since 2005. This increase across the sector can be partially
attributed to a strong economy resulting positive employment outcomes for students.
In 2007 200 Central West TAFE graduates responded to the Student Outcomes Survey, representing a
sample of 439 graduates. This represents an overall response rate of 45.6% for Central West TAFE.

1.3 Proporti on of Gradua tes in Employment
The proportion of graduates in employment is an effectiveness measure that describes the extent to
which Central West TAFE is delivering relevant training programs that enhance the opportunities for
graduates to enter the workforce.
The indicator is based on a national student outcomes survey commissioned by the National Centre for
Vocational Education Research (NCVER) that targets students who successfully completed a vocational
qualification with a VET provider in the previous year and had an Australian address as their usual
residence.
The survey asks graduates to indicate their labour force status as at the end of May of the preceding year.
Graduate employment status is measured for each category (employed, not employed, and not in the
labour force) and obtained by calculating the ratio of graduates in each category compared to total
respondents and expressed as a percentage.
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Table Three : Employment Status 7
Year
Employed
Unemployed
Not in Labour Force

CWT6

CWT

CWT 6

CWT

WA

Australia

2004

2005

2006

2007

2007

2007

7

NA
NA
NA

73%
10%
17%

NA
NA

88%

84%

81%

8

6%

9%

NA

9

10%

10%

4%
7%

Note 6:

2004 and 2006 data is unavailable due to a change in survey methodology by NCVER to a small sample size resulting in data not
considered reliable for reporting purposes. T he College was unable to provide an up date to this Key Perfor mance Indicator in
2004 and 2006 as statistically valid College data is not available.

Note 7:

Figures are rounded to the nearest percent.

Note 8:
Note 9:

Confiden ce interval 5.8% at confidence level 95%.
Confiden ce interval 4% at confidence level 95%.

Note 10: Confiden ce interval 4.8% at confidence level 95%.

88% of Central West TAFE graduates indicated they were employed at the time of the survey (25 th May
2007). This represents an increase for the College over the 2005 result, and compares favorably with the
Western Australian average of 84% and Australian average of 81%.
4% of Central West TAFE graduates considered themselves unemployed. This represents a decrease
compared to 2005 result and is compares favorably with both the state and national average of 6% and
9% respectively. 7% of graduates were “not in the labour force” (people who were neither employed nor
actively looking for work) compared to the state and national averages of 10% and 10% respectively.
This increase in employed status and corresponding decrease in the other two categories across the
sector can be partially attributed to a strong economy resulting positive employment outcomes for
students.
In 2007 200 Central West TAFE graduates responded to the Student Outcomes Survey, representing a
sample of 439 graduates. This represents an overall response rate of 45.6% for Central West TAFE.

1.4 Achievement of Profiled Deli very
The College’s Delivery and Performance Agreement, or Profile as it is commonly termed, is determined on
a yearly basis and reflects the Department of Education and Training’s State Training Profile. The State
Training Profile is developed through an extensive consultation process with stakeholders throughout
Western Australia and incorporates a wide range of inputs, including:










Industry training and employment requirements – incorporating industry training plans developed
by the Industry Training Advisory Bodies;
Regional and community needs;
VET infrastructure and training provider intelligence;
Structure of the Western Australian economy – exports, regional economies;
Labour market trends and projections – casualisation, skill shortages and priorities;
Demographic factors – population trends and projections;
Distribution of educational qualifications;
State Government priorities – regional development, technology, industry policy;
The needs and characteristics of equity groups.

In addition to the information provided via the State Training Profile, the College undertakes continuing
consultation with the community and industry through Industry Advisory Committees, Regional Advisory
Committees and Indigenous Education, Employment and Training Committees to determine their training
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needs. This information then influences the development of the College’s Profile and allows the College
to meet their needs.
Therefore, as the College’s Profile is determined based on the training needs of our clients, assessments
against both overall achievement of College Profile and achievement against targets set for delivery in
individual industry groups provide indicators of the College’s effectiveness in meeting the training needs
of the region.
1.4.1

Overall Achievement of Profiled Delivery

This measure indicates the degree to which the College was able to achieve the total number of planned
Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) as agreed in the College’s target purchasing Matrix, outlined in the
Deliveryand Performance Agreement with the Department of Education and Training.
This indicates the extent to which Central West TAFE is meeting the training needs of the community and
of the state. The following table presents a summary of the achievement of SCH against the planned SCH
during 2007. The planned SCH are obtained from the 2007 Central West TAFE Delivery and Performance
Agreement with the Department of Education and Training (including Addenda). Achieved SCH are
obtained from the February 2008 state AVETMISS collection set for 2007 delivery.
Table Four: Achievement of College Profile 2007, Planned vs Achieved SCH12
Year

Planned SCH

Achieved S CH

% Achieved

2004

894,866

895,310

100.05%

2005

887,098

884,528

99.7%

2006

889,049

874,016

2007

848,972

845,246

98.3%
11

99.6%

Note 11: In 2007 the College delivered an actual total of 849,521 Student Curriculum Hours (SCH ) against a planned total of 848,972 SCH,
that is, 100.1%. However, of the actual SCH a total of 4,275 SCH were over achieved in i ndustry groups where a “hard ceiling”
exists or under achieved in types of delivery where a “hard floor” exists. This delivery not recognised by the Department of
Education and Training in the data reported on the cens us data as a chieved SCH against the planned delivery target and
therefore not included in KPI data.
Note 12: In the years 2004 to 2 006 the achieved SCH is calculated by counting the hours in the year the student commenced study. In
2007 College’s funding model changed to one whereby the SCH is calculated by counting the hours in the year the student
completes study and achieves a result. The achieved commencements SCH figure for the 2007 year which is directly comparable
with the 2004 – 2006 figures was 852,574, 100.4%.

In 2007 the College delivered 99.6% of its planned Profile delivery, as identified through the College’s
target purchasing matrix (including Addenda). This compares favourably with 98.3% achievement in 2006
however in 2007 overall achieved delivery decreased by 3.29% against 2006 achievement. This decrease
is attributable to a range of factors:
 Changes to the College funding model which separated SCH targets into three categories being
Employment Based Training, Skills Shortages, and General Institutional. This resulted in a
decreased flexibility of targets resulting in lower targets being set and achieved.
 A booming local economy with near full employment has resulted in a decrease in demand for
training. The resultant reduced class sizes has combined with the College maintaining its
obligation to the community to deliver a range of courses despite reduced numbers to have an
overall negative effect on SCH delivered.
In response to the changing market the College has formed an agreement with the Department of
Education and Training to reshape its delivery through undertaking extensive research and development
56

into new courses and delivery methodologies. It is expected that the reduction in SCH will be maintained
in 2008 as these activities take place with numbers rebuilding from 2009 onwards.
1.4.2

Achievement of Profiled Delivery by Industry Group

Table Five : Achievement of College Profile 2007 by Department of Education and Training Industry
Group12

WADT Group

2006
Planned
SCH

2007
Planned
SCH

2007
Achieved
SCH

2007 %
Achieved

6,935

81.8%

01A Recreation, Sports and Entertainment

10,560

10,621

8,476

01B Visual and Performing Arts

26,411

19,880

20,632

21,600

104.7%

02A Automotive

32,455

43,691

39,503

41,599

105.3%

03A Building and Construction

57,315

63,766

97,749

111,021

113.6%

03B Surveying and Building

19,652

6,480

9,540

11,920

124.9%

04A Community Service Workers

46,044

40,705

38,940

30,865

79.3%

04B Education and Childcare

38,940

47,290

43,690

50,239

115.0%

04C Health

24,676

17,454

18,333

15,372

83.8%

05A Finance Insurance Property Service Workers

3,710

1,851

500

228

45.6%

11,725

8,223

9,665

4,970

51.4%

07A Clothing, Footwear and Soft Furnish.

6,000

5,540

6,000

5,450

90.8%

07B Furniture Manufacture

9,420

8,467

19,680

14,807

75.2%

06A Food Trades and Processing

09A Engineering and Drafting

3,624

3,920

4,080

4,426

108.5%

09B Metal and Mining

42,782

55,579

54,842

51,882

94.6%

10A Animal Care

12,000

8,980

9,840

7,195

73.1%

10B Forestry, Farming and Landcare

67,382

91,866

44,360

42,689

96.2%

2,560

3,589

2,960

1,810

61.1%

10C Fishing
10D Horticulture

9,720

7,989

9,629

7,790

80.9%

12A Personal Services

24,256

25,986

30,295

28,150

92.9%

12B Retail

13,042

8,141

10,115

11,024

109.0%

13A Cooking

15,664

14,541

20,320

11,953

58.8%

13B Hospitality

15,990

9,985

16,425

9,493

57.8%

13C Tourism

10,268

4,808

4,513

4,913

108.9%

14A Transport Trades, Storage and Associated

28,995

27,640

28,843

149.6%

15A Electrical and Electronic Engineering

10,416

0

1,560

-

0.0%

15B Electrical Trades

30,432

41,668

41,136

51,531

125.3%

16A Accounting and other Business Services

47,275

38,380

26,460

27,720

104.8%

16B Management

13,830

15,160

9,340

9,320

99.8%

16C Office and Clerical

49,953

65,435

77,769

83,010

106.7%

17A Computing

64,864

56,910

30,710

23,760

77.4%

18A Science and Technical Workers

12,100

15,742

17,786

15,121

85.0%

19B Adult Literacy/ESL

54,651

49,220

63,194

67,050

106.1%

19E Target ed Access and Participation Courses

72,337

64,474

41,650

46,835

112.4%

889,049

883,981

848,972

849,521

100.1%

Total
Less hard floor & hard ceiling breaches
Total counted SCH as at census date
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2006
Achieved
SCH

19,280

9,965
889,049

874,016

4,275
848,972

845,246

99.6%

The above table presents a summary of the achievement of Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) against
Department of Education and Training Industry Group in 2007.
The planned SCH are obtained from the 2007 Central West TAFE Delivery and Performance Agreement
with the Department of Education and Training (including Addenda). Achieved SCH are obtained from the
February 2008 state AVETMISS collection set for 2007 delivery. Planned and achieved SCH for 2006 are
also provided for comparison.
The College aims to provide training that meets the needs of clients. Achievement of Profiled Delivery by
Industry Group provides a more detailed indication of the extent to which Central West TAFE is
responding to the demand for training within industry groups. Variances between the planned and
achieved figures reflect varying demand within an industry group, reflective of a diverse regional training
environment. Variations between planned and achieved Student Curriculum Hours (SCH) within industry
groups are within the parameters set within the Delivery and Performance Agreement.

Efficiency Indicators
2.1 Avera ge Cos t per Student Curri culum Hour (SCH)
The overall cost per Student Curriculum, Hour (SCH) is an efficiency measure that shows the aggregate
unit cost of delivery output per SCH, based on the delivery costs as detailed in the 2007 Financial
Statements. The aggregate unit cost is calculated by determining the total cost of services, as reported in
the College’s Statement of Financial Performance, and divided by the actual SCH delivered for profiled
(845,246 SCH) and non-profile (93,739 SCH) activities.
Table Six : Cost per Student Curriculum Hour ($/SCH)12
Cost

2006

2007

$ Per SCH

$23.28

$23.52

The cost per SCH has increased slightly by $0.24 from the 2006 figure.
The interpretation of the Efficiency Performance Indicator Cost per Student Curriculum Hour needs to be
considered in light of the total College profile of training delivery. The cost of delivery varies for different
industry groupings for all training providers. The cost of deliveringa course requiring heavy machinery, for
example, is more expensive than the cost of delivering a paper-based course. In addition the Central West
TAFE services a region of 613,438 square kilometres with delivery in remote areas being considerably
more expensive than at a campus located in a region of significant population.
Similarly, when comparing the average unit cost of delivery for the College to previous years, it is
necessary to examine a range of underlying factors that can contribute to and affect delivery costs.
Delivery costs can vary between courses and are influenced by a range of factors that include:
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The volume and mix of delivery;
Class size, student and market demands;





Mode of delivery and teaching strategies employed;
Course characteristics and target group;
Trade/workshop delivery levels;




Training standards and associated competency levels;
Location, facilities, equipment; and



Consumable costs.
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Central West TAFE
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
Notes
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Grants and subsidies
Capital user charge
Cost of sales
Loss on disposal of non-current assets
Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Fee for service
Student fees and charges
Ancillary revenue
Sales
Commonwealth grants and contributions
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total revenue
Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets
Total gains

2006

$

$

7
8
9
10
11
12
17
21
13

12,603,626
5,786,988
1,508,667
36
126,575
1,003,445
314,564
745,262
22,089,163

12,683,236
5,880,115
1,171,414
166,409
2,213,752
270,680
11,988
839,628
23,237,222

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

1,081,755
1,392,420
288,942
372,679
106,238
163,829
414,027
3,819,890

1,190,677
1,506,933
196,772
346,269
55,711
150,536
329,133
3,776,031

21

1,507
1,507

Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
Resources received free of charge
Total income from State Government

2007

-

3,821,397

3,776,031

(18,267,766)

(19,461,191)

16,913,065
320
739,403
17,652,788

17,312,351
1,077
810,863
18,124,291

22

DEFICIT FOR THE PERIOD
The Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(614,978)

(1,336,900)

Central West TAFE
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2007
Notes

2007

2006

$

$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

33
23,33
24
25
26

1,573,878
1,222,803
132,321
542,590
36,007
3,507,599

2,309,555
116,302
705,721
1,334,371
4,465,949

Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Other non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets

23,33
26
27

151,092
39,669,453
39,820,545

70,526
37,246,253
37,316,779

43,328,144

41,782,728

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

29
30
31

249
1,393,892
695,593
2,089,734

(1,201)
1,284,140
1,924,834
3,207,773

30

1,134,456
1,134,456

1,283,417
1,283,417

3,224,190

4,491,190

40,103,954

37,291,538

12,237,052
10,345,221
17,521,681

11,883,125
7,271,753
18,136,660

40,103,954

37,291,538

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

TOTAL EQUITY

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Central West TAFE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
Notes
Balance of equity at start of period

2007

2006

$

$
37,291,538

22,132,919

11,883,125
353,927
12,237,052

1,670,025
10,213,100
11,883,125

7,271,753
7,271,753
3,073,468
10,345,221

248,232
248,232
7,023,521
7,271,753

18,136,659
18,136,659
(614,978)

20,214,661
(741,101)
19,473,560
(1,336,900)

Balance at end of period

17,521,681

18,136,660

Balance of equity at end of period

40,103,954

37,291,538

2,458,490

5,686,621

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Balance at start of period
Capital contributions
Other contributions by owners
Distributions to owners
Balance at end of period

32

RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period
Restated balance at start of period
Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation
Balance at end of period

32

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)
Balance at start of period
Change in accounting policy
Restated balance at start of period
Surplus/(deficit) for the period

32

Total income and expenses for the period (a)
The aggregate net amount attributable to each category of equity is: deficit $1,009,979 plus gains
from asset revaluation of $3,073,468 (2006: deficit $1,336,900 plus gains from asset revaluation of
$7,023,521).

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Central West TAFE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
Notes

2007

2006

$

$

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Recurrent state funding - Department of Education and Training

16,298,196

15,278,389

16,298,196

15,278,389

Capital state funding - Department of Education and Training
Net cash provided by State Government
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits

(11,613,038)

(11,155,296)

Supplies and services

(4,230,809)

(4,888,121)

Grants and subsidies

(126,575)

(166,409)

Finance costs

(36)

Capital user charge

(2,251,674)

GST payments on purchases

(965,523)

(535,172)

(554,045)

(1,038,266)

(1,481,344)

Fee for service

1,122,700

1,245,911

Student fees and charges

1,465,957

1,905,437

288,942

196,772

Other payments
Receipts

Ancillary trading
Commonwealth grants and contributions

94,159

27,907

Interest received

174,433

139,932

GST receipts on sales

247,412

228,234

GST receipts from taxation authority

285,542

276,411

Other receipts

781,704

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

33

(15,334,721)

675,402
(14,514,732)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets

1,415

-

Purchase of non-current physical assets

(326,672)

(401,837)

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

(325,257)

(401,837)

638,218

361,820

2,309,555

1,947,735

2,947,773

2,309,555

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

33

The Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Central West TAFE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
1

Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
(a) General
The College's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 have been prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) which comprise a Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (the Framework) and
Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Intepretations).
In preparing these financial statements the College has adopted, where relevant to its operations, new and revised standards and interpretations from their
operative dates as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and formerly the Urgent Issues Group (UIG).
The Australian Accounting Interpretations are adopted through AASB 1048 'Interpretation and Application of Standards' and are classified into those
corresponding to International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) Interpretations and those only applicable in Australia.
The AASB has decided to maintain the Statements of Accounting Concepts (SAC 1 and SAC 2) and has continued to revise and maintain accounting
standards and the interpretations that are of particular relevance to the Australian environment, especially those that deal more specifically with not-for-profit
entity issues and/or do not have an equivalent IASB Standard or Interpretation.
(b) Early adoption of standards
The College cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting Interpretation unless specifically permitted by Treasurer's
Instruction (TI) 1101 'Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements'. No standards and interpretations that have been issued
or amended but are not yet effective have been early adopted by the College for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 2007.

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
The following accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these policies are consistent
with those adopted in the previous year.
(a) General statement
The financial statements constitute a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the TIs. Several of these are modified
by the TIs to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. For example, AASB 116 requires land and buildings to be measured at cost or fair value;
TI 954 mandates the fair value option.
The Financial Management Act and the TIs are legislative provisions governing the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the
Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting
financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Modifications or clarifications to accounting standards through the TIs are to provide certainty and ensure consistency and appropriate reporting across
the public sector.
(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, except for certain assets and liabilities
which are measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless
otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar ($).
The judgements that have been made in the process of applying the College’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements are disclosed at note 4 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’.
The key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are disclosed at note 5 ‘Key sources of
estimation uncertainty’.
(c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises the College and entities listed at note 42 ‘Related bodies’.
(d) Contributed equity
UIG Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions to
be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to, transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as
equity contributions. Capital contributions (appropriations) are designated as contributions by owners per TI 955 'Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly
Owned Public Sector Entities' and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.
Transfer of net assets to/from other agencies are designated as contributions by/distributions to owners to where the transfers are non-discretionary and
non-reciprocal. See note 32 'Equity'.
Repayable capital appropriations are recognised as liabilities.
(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
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The majority of operating revenue of the College represents revenue earned from student fees and charges, fee for service, ancillary services, trading
activities and Commonwealth grants and contributions.
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership control transfer to the
purchaser and can be measured reliably.
Rendering of services
Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. The effective interest method which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset, is used where applicable.
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the College obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, usually upon their receipt.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.
Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used
over a particular period, and those conditions were undischarged as at the balance sheet date, the nature of, and amounts pertaining to, those undischarged
conditions are disclosed in the notes.
State funds
The funds received from the Department of Education and Training in respect of the delivery of services forming part of the Delivery Performance
Agreement are included in State funds, disclosed under 'Income from State Government'. They are the result of training successfully tendered for under
competitive tendering arrangements. This revenue is recognised at nominal value in the period in which the College meets the terms of the Agreement.
See note 22 'Income from State Government'.
Gains
Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some
revaluations of non-current assets.
(f) Borrowing costs
Nil
(g) Property, plant and equipment
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their
useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement (other than where they
form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).
Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and buildings and the cost model for all other property, plant and
equipment. Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and accumulated impairment losses. All other items of
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying values determined by
reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.
Where market-based evidence is not available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This normally applies where
buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is dependent on using the depreciated
replacement cost, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately.
Independent valuations of land and buildings were provided as at 1st July 2007 and are provided annually by the Western Australian Land Information
Authority (Landgate) and recognised with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset's fair value at the
balance sheet date.
The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining
estimated useful life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets
and existing use assets. Refer to note 27 'Property, plant and equipment' for further information on revaluations.
Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption
of their future economic benefits.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is based on the straight line method over its useful life, using rates which are reviewed annually.
Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:
Buildings
20 to 40 years
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
4 to 16 years
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Plant, furniture and general equipment
Computing, communications and software (a)
Marine craft

3½ to7½ years
3½ to7½ years
7½ years

Works of art controlled by the College are classified as property, plant and equipment which are anticipated to have very long and indefinite useful lives.
Their service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and so no depreciation has been recognised.
(a)

Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware.

(h) Intangible assets
Nil
No note exists for ‘Intangible assets’.
(i) Impairment of assets
Nil
See note 28 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. See note 2(p) 'Receivables' and note 25 'Receivables' for
impairment of receivables.
(j) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale
Nil
No note 27 exists for ‘Non-current assets classified as held for sale’.held for sale.
(k) Leases
The College has entered into operating lease arrangements for vehilces, building and land. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the
lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased vehilces, building and land.
See note 35 ‘Commitments’ for the outcome of commitments.
(l) Financial instruments
The College has two categories of financial instruments:
• loans and receivables; and
• non-trading financial liabilities
These have been disaggregated into the following classes:
Financial assets
• cash and cash equivalents
• restricted cash and cash equivalents
• receivables
• amounts receivable for services
Financial liabilities
• payables
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value. Usually the transaction cost or face value is equivalent to fair value and subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.
(m) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash and cash equivalents. These are comprised of cash on hand
and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. No bank overdrafts are included in the notes.
(n) Accrued salaries
The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 23 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents' consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account
over a period of ten financial years to largely meet the additional cash outlay in each eleventh year when 27 fortnightly pay periods occur instead of the
normal 26.
Accrued salaries (see note 31 'Other liabilities') represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year, as the end of the last pay period
for that financial year does not coincide with the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The College
considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its net fair value.
(o) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned by the method most appropriate to each particular class of
inventory, with the majority being valued on a first in first out basis.
Inventories not held for resale are valued at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are valued at net realisable value.
See note 24 'Inventories'.
(p) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (impairment). The collectability of
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receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written off. The provision for uncollectible amounts (doubtful
debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the College will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is
due for settlement within 30 days. See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 25 ‘Receivables’.
A provision for impairment of receivables can only be raised if there is objective evidence of impairment.
(q) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the College becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or
services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days. See note 2(l) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 29
'Payables'.
(r) Borrowings
Nil
(s) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and/or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal, equitable or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. See note 30 ‘Provisions’.
(i) Provisions - employee benefits
Annual leave and long service leave
The liability for annual and long service leave expected to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date is recognised and measured at
the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Annual and long service leave expected to be settled more than twelve
months after the balance sheet date is measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. Leave liabilities
are in respect of services provided by employees up to the balance sheet date.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as
employer superannuation contributions. In addition, the long service leave liability also considers the experience of employee departures and periods of
service.
The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the balance sheet date on national government bonds with terms to maturity that
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.
All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the College does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.
Superannuation
Employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now closed to new members or the Gold State Superannuation
(GSS) Scheme, a defined benefit lump sum scheme also closed to new members. Both schemes are administered by the Government Employees
Superannuation Scheme (GESB).
The College has no liabilities for superannuation charges under those schemes, as the liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded
GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS Scheme
obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the College to the GESB. The concurrently funded part of the GSS Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme as these contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded GSS Scheme obligations.
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension or the GSS Schemes became non-contributory
members of the West State Superannuation (WSS) Scheme. Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the
GESB Super (GESBS) Scheme. Both of these schemes are accumulation schemes. The College makes concurrent contributions to GESB on behalf
of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. These contributions extinguish the liability for superannuation charges in respect of the WSS and GESBS Schemes.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and the GSS Scheme transfer benefits and is recouped by the Treasurer for the
employer's share. See also note 2(t) 'Superannuation expense'.
(ii) Provisions - other
Employment on-costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as expenses and liabilities
when the employment, to which they relate, has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of
the College's 'Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'. (See note 13 'Other expenses' and note 30
'Provisions'.)
(t) Superannuation expense
The following elements are included in calculating the superannuation expense in the Income Statement:
(i) Defined benefit plans
Change in the unfunded employer’s liability (i.e. current service cost and actuarial gains and losses) assumed by the Treasurer in respect of current
employees who are members of the Pension Scheme and current employees who accrued a benefit on transfer from that Scheme to the GSS Scheme;
and
(ii) Defined contribution plans
Employer contributions paid to the WSS Scheme, GESBS Scheme and the equivalent of employer contributions to the GSS Scheme.
Defined benefit plans - in order to reflect the true cost of services, the movements (i. e. current service cost and actuarial gains and losses) in the liabilities
in respect of the Pension Scheme and the GSS Scheme transfer benefits are recognised as expenses directly in the Income Statement. As these liabilities
are assumed by the Treasurer (refer note 2(s)(i)), a revenue titled ‘Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer’ equivalent to the expense is recognised under
'Income from State Government' in the Income Statement (see note 22 'Income from State Government').
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Defined contribution plans - in order to reflect the College's true cost of services, the College is funded for the equivalent of employer contributions in
respect of the GSS Scheme (excluding transfer benefits). These contributions were paid to the GESB during the year and placed in a trust account administered by the GESB on behalf of the Treasurer. The GESB subsequently paid these employer contributions in respect of the GSS Scheme to the
Consolidated Fund.
The GSS Scheme is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, apart from the transfer benefit,
it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the College to GESB extinguish all of the College's obligations to the related superannuation liability.
The superannuation expense does not include payment of pensions to retirees, as this does not constitute part of the cost of services provided by the
College in the current year.
(u) Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost
Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income and as assets or expenses, as appropriate,
at fair value.
(v) Jointly controlled operations
Nil
No note exists for ‘Jointly controlled operations’.
(w) Comparative figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.
3

Other policies not included in this Model
Nil

4

Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The judgements that have been made in the process of applying accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements include:
No significant judgements have been made that would materially alter the current financial results of the College.

5

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key estimates and assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty as at the balance sheet date that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:
The uncertainty of the College's ability to deliver all of its training programs may give rise to a provision in 'Current-other liabilities' of a value refundable to
the Department of Education and Training. An estimation will be made based on student information held at year end with final results determined by the
Department the following year.
The College revalue's its Land and Buildings every year however the estimation of useful life of other assets such as Plant and Equipment could be considered
an estimation of uncertainly.

6

Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The College has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian Accounting Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007:
1. AASB 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' (including consequential amendments in AASB 2005-10 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
[AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]'). This Standard requires new disclosures
in relation to financial instruments. The Standard resulted in increased disclosures of risk exposure, both quantitative and qualitative, enhanced disclosure
regarding components of the financial position and performance, and changes to the way of presenting certain items in the notes to the financial statements.
The application of this Standard has no financial impact.
2. AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. This Standard was revised and issued in October 2006 so that AASB 101 has the same requirements as
IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' (as issued by the IASB) in respect of for-profit entities. The College is a not-for-profit entity and consequently,
the application of this Standard has no financial impact.
3. AASB 2005-10 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 132, AASB 101, AASB 114, AASB 117, AASB 133, AASB 139, AASB 1, AASB 4,
AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]'. The amendments are as a result of the issue of AASB 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures', which amends the financial
instrument disclosure requirements in these standards. The application of this Standard has no financial impact.
The following Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations are considered to have no impact, or are not applicable, to not-for-profit entities:
AASB 2007-2
UIG Interpretation 7
UIG Interpretation 8
UIG Interpretation 9
AASB Interpretation 10

'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 12 [AASB 1, AASB 117, AASB 118,
AASB 120, AASB 121, AASB 127, AASB 131 & AASB 139]'
'Applying the Restatement Approach under AASB 129 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies'
'Scope of AASB 2'
'Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives'
'Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment'

Voluntary changes in accounting policy
Nil
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The College cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 'Application
of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronoucements'. Consequently, the College has not applied the following Australian Accounting Standards
and Australian Accounting Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective. These will be applied from their application date:
1. AASB 2007-4 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from ED 151 and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 102, 107, 108, 110, 112,
114, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 139, 141, 1023 & 1038]'. The amendments arise as a result of the AASB decision to
make available all options that currently exist under IFRSs and that certain additional Australian disclosures should be eliminated. It is expected that the TIs
will be amended to maintain the status quo when the Standard is first applied and consequently there will be no financial impact. The Standard is required to be
applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2007.
2. AASB 2007-5 'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standard - Inventories Held for Distribution by Not-for-Profit Entities [AASB 102]'. This amendment
changes AASB 102 'Inventories' so that inventories held for distribution by not-for-profit entities are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss
of service potential. The Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2007.
3. AASB 101 'Presentation of Financial Statements'. This Standard has been revised and will change the structure of the financial statements. These changes
will require that owner changes in equity are presented separately from non-owner changes in equity. The College does not expect any financial impact when
the Standard is first applied. The Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
4. AASB 123 'Borrowing Costs'. This Standard has been revised to mandate the capitalisation of all borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets. The College does not expect any financial impact when the Standard is first applied. The Standard is required to
be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.
5. AASB 1049 'Financial Reporting of General Government Sectors by Governments'. This new Standard sets out requirements for the form and content
of General Government Sector (GGS) financial reports. This Standard is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 July 2008.
6. AASB Interpretation 4 'Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease [revised]'. This Interpretation was revised and issued in February 2007 to
specify that if a public-to-private service concession arrangement meets the scope requirements of AASB Interpretation 12 'Service Concession Arrangements' as issued in February 2007, it would not be within the scope of Interpretation 4. The College does not expect any financial impact when the Interpretation is first applied. The Interpretation is required to be applied to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008.
The following Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations are considered to have no impact, or are not applicable, to not-for-profit entities:
AASB 8
AASB 2007-1
AASB 2007-2
AASB 2007-3
AASB 2007-6
AASB 2007-7
AASB 2007-8
ERR
UIG Interpretation 11
AASB Interpretation 12
AASB Interpretation 13
AASB Interpretation 14
AASB Interpretation 129
AASB Interpretation 1003
Changes in accounting estimates
Nil

'Operating Segments'
'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 11 [AASB 2]'
'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB Interpretation 12 [AASB 1, AASB 117, AASB 118,
AASB 120, AASB 121, AASB 127, AASB 131 & AASB 139]'
'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 8 [AASB 5, AASB 6, AASB 102, AASB 107, AASB
119, AASB 127, AASB 134, AASB 136, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]'
'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 123 [AASB 1, AASB 101, AASB 107, AASB 111,
AASB 116 & AASB 138 and Interpretations 1 & 12]'
'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1, AASB 2, AASB 4, AASB 5, AASB 107 & AASB 128]'
'Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 101'
'Erratum: Proportionate Consolidation [AASB 101, AASB 107, AASB 121, AASB 127, Interpretation 113]'
'AASB 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions'
Service Concession Arrangements'
'Customer Loyalty Programmes'
'AASB 119 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction'
Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures [revised]'.
'Australian Petroleum Resource Rent Tax'
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Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a)
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b)
Superannuation - defined benefit plans (c)(d)
Long service leave (e)
Annual leave (e)
Other

07GLACT

06GLACT

2007

2006

$

$

11,269,857
878,432
110,618
23,602
321,117
12,603,626

11,069,192
848,336
118,037
357,577
65,763
224,331
12,683,236

1,081,975
124,390
438,123
2,005,305
877,956
486,734
129,051
255,535
163,796
224,123
5,786,988

1,243,153
157,636
441,938
1,731,856
876,672
616,443
149,146
295,160
176,567
191,544
5,880,115

836,375
118,603
224,776
112,780
216,133
1,508,667

470,728
112,756
227,598
144,287
216,045
1,171,414

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefit tax component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include the GESB Super, West State and Gold State Schemes (contribution paid).
(c) Defined benefit plans include the Pension and the Gold State Scheme (pre-transfer benefit).
(d) An equivalent notional income is also recognised (see note 22 'Income from State Government').
(e) Includes a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included at note 13 'Other expenses'. The
employment on-costs liability is included at note 30 'Provisions'.
8

9

10

11

12

Supplies and services
Consumables and minor equipment
Communication expenses
Utilities expenses
Consultancies and contracted services
Minor works
Repairs and maintenance (including building maintenance)
Operating lease and hire charges
Travel and passenger transport
Advertising and public relations
Supplies and services - other

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Buildings
Leasehold improvements - buildings
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
Plant, furniture and general equipment
Computers and communication network
Marine craft
Total depreciation
Finance costs
Other interest expenses for overdue creditors

Grants and subsidies
Apprentices and trainees (travel, accommodation and other off-the-job assistance)
Other

Capital user charge
Capital user charge expense

36
36

-

107,935
18,640
126,575

151,554
14,855
166,409

1,003,445

2,213,752

The charge was a levy applied by Government for the use of its capital. In 2007, the final year in which the charge
was levied, a single payment was made equal to the appropriation for 2007 less any adjustment relating to 2006.
13

Other expenses
Doubtful debts expense
Employment on-costs (a)
Donations
Student prizes and awards
Losses and write-offs
Other (b)

37,579
628,946
3,270
10,253
65,214
745,262

(40,142)
680,651
1,114
4,422
50,150
143,433
839,628

(a) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated
with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 30 'Provisions'. Superannuation
cntributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment
on-costs.
(b) Includes Competitive Allocated Training (CAT) tender refund,
Miscellaneous overhead expenses

14

15

16

17

Fee for service
Fee for service - general
Fee for service - Department of Education and Training
Fee for service - Government (other than Department of Education and Training)
International division fees

768,313
131,441
169,961
12,040
1,081,755

677,746
329,097
181,194
2,640
1,190,677

620,065
94,913
487,673
189,769
1,392,420

640,219
91,296
486,308
289,110
1,506,933

136,118
148,054
4,770
288,942

179,574
13,814
3,384
196,772

Trading profit/(loss)
(a) Bookshop:
Sales

67,297

54,718

Cost of sales:
Opening inventory

(35,354)

(15,848)

Student fees and charges
Tuition fees
Enrolment fees
Resource fees
Other college fees

Ancillary revenue
Live works (not a trading activity)
Contracting and consulting
Other ancillary revenue
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Purchases

06GLACT

2007

2006

$

$

(129,639)
(164,993)
(50,946)
(114,047)

(101,426)
(117,274)
(35,354)
(81,920)

Trading profit/(loss) - Bookshop

(46,750)

(27,202)

(b) Cafeteria (non-training related)
Sales

305,382

291,551

(8,905)
(201,861)
(210,766)
(10,249)
(200,517)

(7,814)
(189,851)
(197,665)
(8,905)
(188,760)

104,865

102,791

106,238
106,238

55,711
55,711

163,829

150,536

290,413
8,013
65,393
363,819

235,405
7,159
86,569
329,133

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
Costs of disposal of non-current assets
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
Plant, furniture and general equipment
Total cost of disposal of non-current assets

(65,160)
(65,160)

(149,816)
(3,445)
(153,261)

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
Plant, furniture and general equipment
Computers and communication network
Total proceeds from disposal of non-current assets

65,252
1,415
66,667

137,273
4,000
141,273

1,507

(11,988)

Closing inventory
Cost of goods sold

Cost of sales:
Opening inventory
Purchases
Closing inventory
Cost of goods sold
Trading profit/(loss) - Cafeteria
18

07GLACT

Commonwealth grants and contributions
Commonwealth specific purpose grants and contributions
These grants include Reframing the Future, Jobs, Education and Training creche

19

20

21

Interest revenue
Interest revenue (CBA and Treasury, variable interest rate)
Other revenue
Rental and facilities fees
Sponsorship and donations revenue
Miscellaneous revenue

Net gain/(loss)
22 Income from State Government
State funds (received from Department of Education and Training):
Delivery and Performance Agreement (DPA)
Superannuation
Other recurrent funds
Capital user charge funding
Total State funds
The following liabilities have been assumed by the Treasurer during the financial year:
Superannuation (a)
Total liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
Resources received free of charge determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies (b):
Department of Education and Training
- Corporate systems support
- Marketing and publications
- Human resources, and industrial relations support
- Other
Total resources received free of charge
Total income from State Government

13,522,967
988,845
1,397,808
1,003,445
16,913,065

12,700,428
965,353
1,432,818
2,213,752
17,312,351

320
320

1,077
1,077

644,419
62,025
32,959
739,403

645,861
102,703
33,844
28,455
810,863

17,652,788

18,124,291

(a) The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is notional income to match the notional
superannuation expense reported in respect of current employees who are members of the Pension Scheme
and current employees who have a transfer benefit entitlement under the GSS Scheme. (The notional superannuation expense is disclosed at note 7 'Employee benefits expense'.)

(b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the College recognises
revenues (except where the contribution of assets or services is in the nature of contributions by owners, in
which case the College shall make a direct adjustment to equity) equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/
or the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined and which would have been purchased if not
donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as assets or expenses, as applicable.

23

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent cash resources the uses of which are restricted, wholly or
partially, by regulations or other externally imposed requirements.
Current
Specific funding for capital equipment, minor works and projects (a)
Non-current
Accrued salaries to fund 27th pay (c)

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents

1,222,803
1,222,803

-

151,092
151,092

-

1,373,895

-

(a) capital equipment projects = $815,555, special project funding requiring acquittal as imposed by external agences = $407,248
Funds to be expended within 12 months.
(b) 27th pay - amount from 2005 to 2007, held for the purpose of meeting the 27th fortnight pay that occurs every 11 years in 2015

24

Inventories
Inventories not held for resale:
Central Store (at cost)
Inventories held for resale:

71,126
71,126

72,042
72,042
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07GLACT

Bookshop (at cost)
Cafeteria (at cost)

06GLACT

2007

2006

$

$
50,946
10,249
61,195

35,354
8,906
44,260

132,321

116,302

Prepayments
Total current

252,101
179,023
(121,574)
25,859
335,409
207,181
542,590

283,930
189,828
(83,995)
54,872
444,635
261,086
705,721

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Balance at start of year
Doubtful debts expense recognised in the Income Statement
Balance at end of year

(83,995)
(37,579)
(121,574)

(124,137)
40,142
(83,995)

239,643
69,907
309,550

323,451
66,312
389,763

31,587
4,420
36,007

1,333,219
1,152
1,334,371

Total
See also not 2(o) 'Inventories' and note 17 'Trading profit/(loss)'.
25

Receivables
Current
Receivables - trade
Receivables - students
Allowance for impairment of receivables
GST receivable

Ageing of receivables past due but not impaired based on the information provided to senior management,
as at the balance sheet date:
Up to 4 months
More than 4 months

See also note 2(p) 'Receivables' and note 39 'Financial instruments'.
26

Other assets
Current
Accrued income
Other current assets (a)
Total current
Non-current
Other non-current assets (b)
Total non-current

-

70,526
70,526

(a) disputed purchasing card transactions
(b) assets not elsewhere classified

27

Property, plant and equipment
Land
At fair value (a)
Buildings
At fair value (a)
Accumulated depreciation
Buildings under construction
Construction costs

2,280,000
2,280,000

1,480,000
1,480,000

34,785,000
(73,859)
34,711,141

33,331,540
(57,492)
33,274,048

300,305
300,305

Motor vehicles, caravans and trailers
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Plant, furniture and general equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Computer equipment, communication network
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Marine craft
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

-

928,758
(332,155)
596,603

946,047
(291,533)
654,514

2,328,595
(1,403,216)
925,379

1,986,017
(1,286,993)
699,024

690,492
(612,952)
77,540

923,325
(762,641)
160,684

1,678,516
(900,031)
778,485

1,661,881
(683,898)
977,983

39,669,453

37,246,253

(a) Freehold land and buildings were revalued as at 1st July 2007 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority
(Landgate). The valuations were performed during the year ended 31st Decmeber 2007 and recognised at 31st December 2007.
The fair value of all land and buildings was determined by reference to market values. See note 2(g) 'Property, plant and equipment'.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting
period are set out below.

2007
Carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Transfers
Disposals
Revaluation increments
Write-off of assets
Depreciation expense
Carrying amount at end of year

2006
Carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Transfers

Land
1,480,000
800,000
2,280,000

Land
610,100
-

Buildings
33,274,048
2,273,468
(836,375)
34,711,141

Buildings
17,386,215
10,204,940

Buildings under
Motor vehicles, Plant, furniture and
construction caravans and trailers general equipment
654,514
699,024
300,305
125,852
456,816
(65,160)
(5,685)
(118,603)
(224,776)
300,305
596,603
925,379

Buildings under
Motor vehicles, Plant, furniture and
construction caravans and trailers general equipment
96,265
579,960
1,099,508
341,884
189,901
(96,265)

Computer
equipment,
communication
network
160,684
31,863

Marine craft
977,983
16,635

(2,227)
(112,780)
77,540

(216,133)
778,485

Computer
equipment,
communication
network
669,032
12,473

Marine craft
1,196,361
-

Total
37,246,253
931,471
(65,160)
3,073,468
(7,912)
(1,508,667)
39,669,453

Total
21,637,441
10,749,198
(96,265)
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07GLACT

06GLACT

2007

2006

$
Disposals
Revaluation increments
Write-off of assets
Depreciation expense
Carrying amount at end of year
28

869,900
1,480,000

6,153,621
(470,728)
33,274,048

-

(149,817)
(4,757)
(112,756)
654,514

(3,445)
(359,342)
(227,598)
699,024

$

(376,534)
(144,287)
160,684

(2,333)
(216,045)
977,983

(153,262)
7,023,521
(742,966)
(1,171,414)
37,246,253

Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment of property plant, equipment and intangibles as at 31 December 2007.
The College held no goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lifes during the reporting period and at balance
sheet date there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.
All surplus assets as at 31 December 2007 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off.

29

Payables
Current
Trade payables
Total current

249
249

(1,201)
(1,201)

See also note 2(q) 'Payables' and note 39 'Financial Instruments'.
30

Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a)
Long service leave (b)
Salary deferment (c)

521,805
577,998
34,946
1,134,749

561,044
476,405
44,975
1,082,424

259,143
259,143

201,716
201,716

1,393,892

1,284,140

971,333
39,763
1,011,096

1,049,324
42,338
1,091,662

123,360
123,360

191,755
191,755

1,134,456

1,283,417

521,805
521,805

561,044
561,044

577,998
971,333
1,549,331

476,405
1,049,324
1,525,729

34,946
39,763
74,709

44,975
42,338
87,313

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year
Additional provisions recognised
Carrying amount at end of year

393,471
(10,968)
382,503

332,313
61,158
393,471

Other liabilities
Current
Income received in advance (a)
Grants and advances (b)
Accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related costs
Money/deposits held in trust
Other
Total current liabilities

1,529
129,346
467,099
75,546
20,732
1,341
695,593

70,316
49,319
1,751,357
35,914
17,640
288
1,924,834

1,529
1,529

70,316
70,316

90,970
38,376
129,346

49,319
49,319

Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)

Total current
Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b)
Salary deferment (c)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)

Total non-current
(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement
for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities
will occur as follow:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of
the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date
More than 12 months of balance sheet date

(c) Salary deferrment liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of
the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date
More than 12 months of balance sheet date

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs
including workers' compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The
associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 13 'Other expenses'.

Movements in other provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below.

31

(a) Income received in advance comprises:
Fee for service
Student fees and charges

(b) Grants and advances comprises:
Department of Education and Training - project funding
Department of Education and Training - curriculum grants
Other Government (Commonwealth/Local)

32

Equity
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06GLACT

2007

2006

$

$

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the College. The Government holds the equity interest
in the net assets of the College. The Government holds the equity interest in the College on behalf of the community.
The asset revaluation reserve represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.
Contributed equity
Balance at start of year

11,883,125

1,670,025

353,927
353,927

10,213,100
10,213,100

12,237,052

11,883,125

7,271,753

248,232

800,000
2,273,468
3,073,468

869,900
6,153,621
7,023,521

Balance at end of year

10,345,221

7,271,753

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year

18,136,660

20,214,661

Contributions by owners
Capital contribution (a)
Total contributions by owners
Balance at end of year
(a) Capital Contributions (appropriations) and non-discretionary (non-reciprocal) transfers of net assets from other
State Government agencies have been designated as contributions by owners in Treasurer's Instruction TI 955
Contribution by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities' and are credited directly to equity.

Reserves
Asset revaluation reserve
Balance at start of year
Land
Buildings

Result for the period
Other adjustments (change in accounting policy - increase asset threshold from $1,000 to $5,000)

Balance at end of year
33

(614,979)
(614,979)

(1,336,900)
(741,101)
(2,078,001)

17,521,681

18,136,660

8,109
6,020
409,749
700,000
450,000
1,573,878
1,373,895
2,947,773

5,959
2,150
1,151,446
700,000
450,000
2,309,555
2,309,555

(18,267,766)

(19,461,191)

1,508,667
37,579
989,165
739,403
(1,507)
65,465

1,171,414
(40,142)
966,373
810,863
11,988
791,251

134,118
(16,019)
1,298,364
70,526

110,975
(7,827)
(1,301,719)
(70,526)

1,450
109,752
(1,596,210)
(148,961)

(12,473)
(329,440)
2,338,184
801,351

(287,760)
29,013

(325,811)
31,998

(15,334,721)

(14,514,732)

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year, as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items in
the Balance Sheet as follows:
Cash on hand
Cash advances
Cash at bank
Short term deposits (Treasury, variable interest rate)
Short term deposits (CBA, variable interest rate)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer to note 23 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents')

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
Net cost of services
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Doubtful debts expense
Superannuation expense
Resources received free of charge
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Losses and write-offs (excludes cash shortages/thefts of money)
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (c)
Current inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
Current payables (c)
Current provisions
Other current liabilities
Non-current provisions
Net GST receipts/(payments) (a)
Change in GST in receivables/payables (b)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
(a) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions
(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables
(c) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable
in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included as they are not reconciling items.
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Resources provided free of charge
Nil
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Commitments
Lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial
statements, are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases

74,112
141,204
215,316

26,236
9,540
9,540
45,316

215,316
215,316

45,316
45,316

Central West TAFE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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07GLACT

06GLACT

2007

2006

$

$

The Authority has the option to purchase leased assets at their agreed fair value on expiry of the lease. These leasing arrangements do not have
escalation clauses, other than in the event of payment default. There are no restrictions imposed by these leasing arrangements on other financing
transactions. Certain finance leases have a contingent rental obligation, however these are not material when compared to the total lease payments
made.
Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

74,112
141,204
215,316
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Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Nil
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Events occurring after the balance sheet date
Nil
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Explanatory Statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense are shown below. Significant
variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and $100,000 and any variance greater than $200,000.
Significant variations between estimated and actual results for 07

2007
Estimate
$

26,236
9,540
9,540
45,316

2007
Actual
$

Variation
$

Expense
Employee benefits expense
* salary savings achieved through non-delivery of profile courses
* shared services salary savings of staffing numbers

13,059,937

12,603,626

(456,311)

Depreciation and amortisation expense'
* additional deprecation in 2007 due to the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute and building valuations

1,200,687

1,508,667

307,980

Capital user charge
* capital user charge ceased in June 2007. Variance relates capital user charge calculation based on net assets at time of estimates.

1,530,743

1,003,445

(527,298)

Other expenses
* competitive allocated training (CAT) tender refund
* Riskcover insurance premium savings in 2007

1,220,977

745,262

(475,715)

Significant variations between actual results for 07 and 06

2007
$

2006
$

Variance
$

16,913,065

17,312,351

399,286

Depreciation and amortisation expense
* additional deprecation in 2007 due to the Batavia Coast Maritime Institute and building valuations

1,508,667

1,171,414

(337,253)

Capital user charge
* capital user charge for 12 months in 2006, however only 6 months in 2007

1,003,445

2,213,752

Income
Sate funds
* additional equipment grants were funded in 2006
* additional 6 months capital user charge funding in 2006
Expense
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Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial instruments held by the College are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and payables. The College has limited exposure to financial risks. The College's overall risk
management program focus on managing the risk identified below:
Credit risk
The College trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The College has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the College's exposure to debt is
minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Liquidity risk
The College has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
Interest rate risk
The College's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the long-term debt obligations. The College has no borrowings.
(b) Financial instrument disclosures
Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk exposures
The following table details the College's maximum exposure to credit risk, and the exposure to liquidity risk and interest
rate risk as at the reporting date, based on information provided to senior management of the College. The contractual
maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted amounts as at the balance sheet date. An adjustment for discounting has been made where material.
The College does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it
holds.
The College does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise
resulted in them being past due or impaired.

2007
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent
Receivables
Financial Liabilities

Weighted Average
Effective Interest
Rate

Variable Interest
Rate

Contractual maturity dates
Non-Interest
Bearing

Total

%

$

$

$

5.79%

2,933,644
2,933,644

14,129
335,409
349,538

2,947,773
335,409
3,283,182

1,210,307
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2007

2006

$
Payables

2006
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalent
Receivables

-

$

249
249

249
249

Weighted Average
Effective Interest
Rate

Variable Interest
Rate

Non-Interest
Bearing

Total

%

$

$

$

5.48%

2,301,446
2,301,446

Financial Liabilities
Payables

-

8,109
444,635
452,744

2,309,555
444,635
2,754,190

(1,201)
(1,201)

(1,201)
(1,201)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the College's financial assets and liabilities
at the balance sheet date on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that
the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.
- 1% change
2007

Carrying amount
$

Financial Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalent

2,933,644 -

Profit
$

+1% change
Equity
$

29,336 -

29,336

Profit
$

29,336

- 1% change
2006

Carrying amount
$

Financial Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalent

2,301,446 -

Profit
$

Equity
$

29,336

+1% change
Equity
$

23,014 -

23,014

Profit
$

23,014

Equity
$

23,014

Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are
recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the
applicable notes.
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Remuneration of members of the College and Senior Officers
Remuneration of members of the College
The number of members of the College whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary
benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
$
$150,001 -$160,000
$170,001 - $180,000
The total remuneration of the members of the College is:

-

1
1

177,190

159,196

Total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the College in respect of members of the College.
Remuneration of Senior Officers
The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the College, whose total of fees,
salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following
bands are:
$
$70,001 - $80,000
$80,001 - $90,000
$90,001 - $100,000
$100,001 - $110,000
$110,001 - $120,000
$120,001 - $130,000
The total remuneration of senior officers is:

1
5
1
1
1

1
2
5
2
-

1,032,420

918,819

54,780

52,800

50,456
115
741,101

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the College in respect of senior officers other
than senior officers reported as members of the College.
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
41

Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General for the financial year is as follows:
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators
The expense is included in note 13 'Other expenses'.
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Related Bodies
The College has no related bodies.

43

Affiliated Bodies
The College has no affiliated bodies.
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Supplementary Financial Information
Write-Offs
Public property
Bad debts
Other - removal of small balances
Other - increase asset threshold from $1,000 to $5,000

7,912
57,428
22
-

Loses through theft, defaults and other causes
Losses of public and other moneys and public and other property through theft, default or otherwise
Amount recovered
Surplus / (Shortage)

3,646
(3,521)
125

1,525
(1,831)
(306)

Central West TAFE
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Schedule of Income and Expenditure by Service
The college provides only one service and that is Vocational Education and Training Delivery.

07GLACT

06GLACT

2007

2006

$

$

CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
INCOME STATEMENT
2008
Estimate
$
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Cost of sales

12,435,017
5,507,894
1,569,249
55,021
1,086,836
213,021

Total Cost of Services

20,867,038

Income
Revenue
Fee for service
Student charges and fees
Sales
Ancillary trading
Commonwealth grants and contributions
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue

1,403,157
1,279,160
306,593
282,250
52,414
131,056
386,539
3,841,168

Total income other than income from State Government

3,841,168

NET COST OF SERVICES

-17,025,870

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds
Liabilities assumed by the Treasurer
Resources received free of charge
Total income from State Government
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

15188789
1000
820000
16,009,789
-1,016,080

CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
BALANCE SHEET
2008
Estimate
$
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Receivables
Other current assets

1,432,236
850,000
97,240
793,581
86,234

Total Current Assets

3,259,291

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

40,897,004
40,897,004
44,156,296

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

10,000
1,139,026
500,000
1,649,026

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,377,436
1,377,436
3,026,463

NET ASSETS

41,129,833

EQUITY
Contributed Equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficiency)

16,585,809
8,471,753
16,072,271

TOTAL EQUITY

41,129,833

CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
CHANGES IN EQUITY STATEMENT
2008
Estimate
$

Balance of equity at start of period

37,195,913

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Balance at start of period
Capital contribution
Balance at end of period

12,235,809
4,350,000
16,585,809

RESERVES
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at start of period
Restated balance at start of period
Gains/(losses) from asset revaluation
Balance at end of period

7,871,753
7,871,753
600,000
8,471,753

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (RETAINED EARNINGS)
Balance at start of period
Restated balance at start of period
Surplus/(deficit) or profit/(loss) for the period
Balance at end of period

17,088,351
17,088,351
-1,016,080
16,072,271

Balance of equity at end of period

41,129,833

Total income and expense for the period

-416,080

CENTRAL WEST TAFE
S40 SUBMISSION
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2008
Estimate
$
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
State funds
Capital contributions
Holding account drawdowns
Net cash provided by State Government

14,193,830

14,193,830

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
Other payments

-11,464,477
-4,597,812
-55,021
-530,000
-1,299,857

Receipts
Fee for service
Student fees and charges
Ancillary trading
Commonwealth grants and contributions
Interest received
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

1,473,157
1,279,160
282,250
52,414
131,056
235,000
305,000
693,132
-13,495,998

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of non-current physical assets

-400,000

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

-400,000

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

297,832
1,984,404

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

2,282,236
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CONTACTS
Contacting the College
Geraldton Cam pus
Fi tzgerald Street GERALDTON WA 6530
Locked Ba g 103 GERALDTON WA 6531
Telephone (08) 9956 2700
Fa csimile (08) 9921 7705
Carnarvon Campus
6 Camel Lane CARNARVON WA 6701
PO Box 961 CARNARVON W A 6701
Telephone (08) 9941 0100
Facsimile (08) 9941 0170

Exmouth Campus

Maidstone Crescent EXMOUTH WA 6707
PO Box 32 EX MOUTH WA 6707
Telephone (08) 9949 2624
Facsimile (08) 9949 2278

Visit our Website at:
http://www.centralwest.wa.edu.au
For further information about the Annual Report Contact:
Ms Kristie Tonkin
Manager Quality and Planning
Locked Bag 103 GERALDTON WA 6531
Telephone (08) 9956 2834
This Annual Report is available in alternative formats upon request

